
Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where
individuals, communities and businesses flourish

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
Mid and South Essex Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP)

The meeting will be held at 7.30 pm on 13 March 2018

Committee Room 1, Essex County Council, County Hall, Chelmsford, CM1 1QH

Essex County Council
Councillors Jo Beavis, Beverley Egan, Dr Richard Moore and Stephen Robinson
Substitute Members: Councillor Jill Reeves
Officer support: Graham Hughes

Southend on Sea Borough Council
Councillors Bernard Arscott, Anne Jones, Stephen Habermel and Cheryl Nevin
Substitute Members: Councillors Margaret Borton, Helen Boyd
Officer support: Fiona Abbott, Tobias Hartley

Thurrock Council
Councillors Graham Snell, Victoria Holloway, Gary Collins and Tony Fish
Substitute Members: None
Officer support: Roger Harris, Jenny Shade

Agenda

Open to Public and Press

Page

1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 20 January 2018 1 - 6

4  Statements from Members of the Public 

5  Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP)

7 - 102

Report of Jo Cripps, Programme Director STP 



6  Questions from the Joint Committee on the STP Report & 
responses by the STP Statements from members of the public - 
Guidance for members of the public for agenda item 4

Members of the public attending the meeting and who wish to make 
a statement at the meeting must notify the clerk of their intention by 
close of business on the working day prior to the meeting (contact 
details above), and should provide their name and contact 
information. Each person speaking shall be limited to a maximum of 
3 minutes. If speaking on behalf of a group / body, a spokesperson 
must be appointed. The period for statements from members of the 
public at the meeting will be at the Chairman’s discretion and 
normally will not exceed 15 minutes in total. No response will be 
provided at the meeting.

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:

Please contact Fiona Abbott, by sending an email to
committeesection@southend.gov.uk 

Agenda published on: 8 February 2018 

mailto:committeesection@southend.gov.uk


SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Mid and South Essex 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership

Date: Tuesday, 20th February, 2018
Place: Council Chamber - Civic Suite

Present: Essex County Council – County Councillors J Beavis, B Egan, Dr R 
Moore and S Robinson
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council – Councillors B Arscott, S 
Habermel, A Jones and C Nevin
Thurrock Council – Councillor G Snell

In Attendance: Councillors J Moyies, L Salter, J Ware-Lane and C Willis (Southend-
on-Sea Borough Council)
F Abbott, G Hughes, T Hartley and Roger Harris (Thurrock)

Start/End Time: 7.30  - 9.40 pm

1  Apologies for absence & substitutions 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Holloway (Thurrock 
Council), Councillor Collins (Thurrock Council) and Councillor Fish (Thurrock 
Council).

2  Declarations of Interest 

The following interests were made:- 

(a)  County Cllr Beavis – non-pecuniary - ECC nominated governor – Mid Essex 
CCG; 

(b)  County Cllr Egan – non-pecuniary - ECC nominated governor - Castle Point 
and Rochford CCG; 

(c)  Councillor Nevin – non-pecuniary - 2 children work at MEHT; step sister works 
at Basildon Hospital; previous association at Southend and MEHT Hospitals; 
NHS employee in Trust outside STP area (Royal London & Barts) which was 
mentioned in presentation on transport; sister works in Yorkshire in health field 
which was mentioned during the meeting; 

(d)  Councillor Habermel – non-pecuniary - brother is a paramedic; sister is a 
nurse & works at Southend Hospital;

(e)  Councillor Jones – non-pecuniary – knows a Nurse Prescriber as close friend;
(f)   Councillor Salter - non-pecuniary – husband is consultant surgeon at 

Southend Hospital and holds senior posts at the hospital; son-in-law is a GP; 
daughter is a doctor at Broomfield Hospital;

(g)  Councillor Moyies – non-pecuniary - Governor of Essex Partnership University 
NHS Foundation Trust.

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3  Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman 

Resolved:-

1. That Councillor Arscott be appointed as Chairman of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee.

COUNCILLOR ARSCOTT IN THE CHAIR

2. That County Councillor Beavis and Councillor Snell be appointed as the two 
Vice Chairmen of the Joint Scrutiny Committee.

4  To agree the Terms of Reference for the Joint Committee 

Resolved:-

That the Terms of Reference of the Joint Scrutiny Committee be agreed.

5  Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
(STP) 

On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman welcomed the following 
representatives from the Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP) to the meeting:-

 Jo Cripps – Programme Director, STP
 Dr Celia Skinner – Medical Director, STP
 Caroline Rassell – Senior Responsible Officer, STP
 Claire Hankey – Director of Communications and Engagement, STP
 Clare Panniker – Chief Executive of the 3 hospitals in Mid and South Essex

The Committee considered an update briefing paper from the Mid and South 
Essex Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) Programme Director 
on the public consultation which formally commenced on 30th November 2017 and 
runs to 9th March 2018. The representatives also gave a presentation which 
provided information of the public consultation to date, the emerging feedback and 
next steps and the proposed timeline (for discussion and agreement).

The Programme Director confirmed that although the proactive consultation 
activity will end as planned on 9th March, the STP will continue to accept feedback 
(including the questionnaire) through until 20 March.

As well as acute reconfiguration the STP are encouraging more self-care, utilising 
voluntary sector, utilise local services - especially community pharmacists - and 
look to offer a wider range of services at GP practices and ultimately looking to 
make services in the community more joined up. 
 
There are five principle for future hospital services:-
 Majority of care will remain local
 Certain more specialised services should be concentrated in one place and 

get better patient outcomes (e.g. cardiothoracic at Basildon Hospital, burns at 
Broomfield, radiotherapy and oncology at Southend Hospital)

Page 2



 Access to specialist services should be available via local A&E
 Separate planned care from emergency care
 Some services should be provided closer to home
 
A number of services will remain available at all three hospital sites. However the 
STP proposals are recommending:-
 Intensive care aspects of stroke services to be centred at Basildon Hospital 

although initial triage and treatment could be undertaken locally
 Specialised gynaecology (including cancer) in Southend
 Planned orthopaedic operations to be in Southend and Braintree
 Complex urology at Southend
 Complex lung, vascular, heart and kidney at Basildon
 
By reconfiguring the acute trusts as proposed they expect the acute trusts to be 
able to operate within the financial envelope given. Substantial £118m of 
transformation monies had been provisionally awarded for capital investment for 
buildings, technology and transport. However, this was not guaranteed and was 
dependent on the outcome of the consultation process.
 
The STP are committed to producing a transport plan which will be a key part of 
the final documentation for decision. This would include provision for clinical 
transfers and a patient and visitor bus service between hospitals.

Resolved:-

1. That the update report be noted.
2. That the STP timeline be noted and that the STP will continue to accept 

feedback (including the questionnaire) through until 20 March.

6  Statements from members of the public 

Mr Fieldhouse, a resident of Southend and spokesman for ‘Save the NHS – 
Southend’, made a statement which focussed on the clinical evidence put forward 
by the STP for specialising some services in one specific location. He made 
reference to international evidence that better outcomes are not automatically 
achieved by operating from fewer larger centres. He suggested that much of the 
data relied on by the STP was dated and urged the Committee to check the 
pertinence and veracity of the data.

7  Questions from the Joint Committee on the presentation given by the 
STP;  responses by the STP 

The Committee asked the representatives of the STP a number of questions 
which were responded to as follows:-

Planning assumptions
Numbers on patient flows and estimated numbers on those impacted by the 
proposals for acute services were based on current activity. The plan was 
predicated on managing the future demographic and demand growth by 
expanding primary care and other community services.
 

Page 3



It was also confirmed that many of the numbers quoted in the consultation were 
averages and that further refinement of numbers would be done as actual figures 
were validated against modelling assumptions.
 
Planned operations
Under the proposals Basildon Hospital would have limited planned care (e.g. 
cardiothoracic, vascular but relatively small numbers for each). A far greater 
proportion of planned care would be at Southend Hospital and Mid Essex Hospital 
Trust and the STP believed that, as a result, they could manage patient flows 
through the hospitals better than now. The Hospitals already do winter planning 
and will continue to make those seasonal adjustments.
  
Stroke services
The STP were proposing a variation to national specification due to local 
feedback. The STP stressed that there was strong international evidence that 
good outcomes could still be achieved by undertaking a local assessment and 
provide clot busting medication before transfer to a specialist service (model being 
used in Scarborough and York) and that this was shown to be no worse in terms 
of outcomes compared to immediate transfer for treatment. 
 
Action: The Joint Committee to be provided with the numbers of people suffering 
a stroke by CCG area over last 5 years.
  
Clinical evidence
Clinical changes had been developed by the relevant local clinical teams and had 
not imposed from 'top down'. The STP argued that the reconfiguration 
proposals would bring clinical teams together and enable critical mass and provide 
more 7 day services, and help with recruitment gaps. It was also considered by 
the STP that consolidation of some services would create a better training 
environment to help recruit and retain staff and create research capacity 
opportunities.
 
Despite this some members felt that there needed to be more clinical evidence to 
support the proposed changes and that greater assurance was needed about 
better outcomes.
  
Engagement
Responses received to date were weighted slightly in favour of the Southend area 
and comprised slightly older demographic. In recognition of that the STP had 
arranged an event next week at SE Essex College (after having already held an 
event at ARU).
 
A concern was expressed that the terms of engagement had not been good in the 
Thurrock area. Some members considered that the consultation period needed to 
go on for longer whilst others doubted extending consultation by another few 
weeks would make any significant difference and that there would be other 
opportunities to communicate and engage as the plans and implementation 
progressed.
 
Some members referred to an oversubscribed event in Southend and a further 
session was also now fully booked and queried whether this meant there was 
full opportunity for everyone to take part. The STP countered that the Statutory 
defined consultation period was 12 weeks and they had already extended it by 2 

Page 4



weeks for Christmas and New Year. The STP considered that they had complied 
with legislation as regards staging events in safe venues. The STP advised that 
they were looking at possibly live streaming a future event.
 
Members asked that the content and structure of the telephone survey be 
provided: Action.
 
Members also requested further information on the quantity and content of 
feedback received by email and via other comment forums. Action.
 
The STP had highlighted the number of hits on a newsfeed and on their Facebook 
page as examples of their reach. However, members asked how the STP were 
identifying unique hits as opposed to regular followers making multiple hits. 
 
Members sought further reassurance on the reach of the consultation. The STP 
stressed that they had involved Age Concern and CVS. Members queried if there 
was involvement of users of mental health services. The STP advised that they 
had contacted a number of support groups and that EPUT were members of the 
STP comms groups. 
 
The population of the STP footprint was approximately 1.2 million. The STP 
confirmed that anecdotally a 1% response rate would be considered a good 
response.
  
Primary care
The 5 CCGs have been working collectively on an STP plan for Primary Care. The 
STP Primary Care Strategy would identify the primary care workforce requirement 
across the STP area for the next five years. It would also look at the estate 
requirement and then will map on other services in the community. It was 
anticipated that the Strategy would be presented to the CCG Joint Committee 
meeting on 6 April to then be taken back to the Boards of each individual CCG’s.  
Action: The Primary Care Strategy to be presented to a future meeting of the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee.
  
Community
Some members were worried that the STP plans assumed that they could deliver 
all their locality models and consequently were asking a lot of community services. 
Those members also highlighted that they understood that NHS England had 
abandoned their national strategic plan for community services and queried 
whether the NHS England Primary Care/GP Forward View was deliverable.
 
In being challenged on whether there would be enough resources to deliver the 
level of change required for out of hospital care the STP admitted it was too early 
to say and that further work was needed to identify the capacity required and 
options for using different staff and skill mix.

Some Members sought more information on the locations being considered for the 
relocation of services out of Orsett Hospital. The STP highlighted that there were 
some suggestions already on suggested locations for some of the hospital based 
services with the vast majority to remain in Thurrock. However, one site had been 
identified in Basildon Town centre. Orsett Hospital would remain open until the 
above has been done.

Page 5



Information sharing
The STP were already working on enabling the sharing of x-ray results across the 
three acute sites. The next phase was to make blood test results available across 
the three sites. The three acutes currently operated three separate clinical record 
systems and the STP was also working on getting them viewable across the three 
sites and, in time, to be available in primary care and community services. 
Transformation monies would be used to fund this digital transformation. 

Transport
The STP clarified that their proposals on transport had focussed on the proposed 
new services and specifically inter-hospital transfers. There were already other 
transport services to enable frail and elderly to come into hospital.  There was no 
presumption that the new services would form part of existing contracted EEAS 
service - it was still being assessed. That review would go on beyond the end of 
the consultation period.
 
It was acknowledged that patient transfers would require pulling staff from 
somewhere to accompany the patient. It will need to be an additional dedicated 
resource and was still under discussion.
 
The provision of bus transfer services would not be time limited. It could be 
provided at relatively modest and immaterial cost and not significantly impact on 
overall STP financial planning. Some members advised that there may be an 
opportunity for CVS involvement and community transport. The STP agreed to 
consider this further. It was also acknowledged that if more travel between 
hospitals was to be required for families and carers etc. then consideration 
needed to be taken of connections with other (public) transport services. 
 
The STP confirmed that suitable Equality Impact Assessments would need to be 
undertaken.

8  Date of next meeting 

Resolved:-

The next meeting of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be held on Tuesday 13th 
March 2018 beginning at 19.30 and will be held at County Hall, Chelmsford.

Chairman:

Page 6



Corporate Director for Corporate Services: Sally Holland
Civic Centre : Victoria Avenue : Southend-on-Sea : Essex SS2 6ER

Customer Service Centre: 01702 215000 : www.southend.gov.uk

Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-Sea, Essex, SS2 6ER
Customer Service Centre: 01702 215000: www.southend.gov.uk

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Department of the Chief Executive
John Williams - Director of Democratic & Legal Services
Our ref: Telephone: 01702 215000
Your ref: Fax: 01702 215994
Date: 8th March 2018 E-mail: committeesection@southend.gov.uk
Contact Name: Fiona Abbott DX 2812 Southend

Dear Councillor

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - MID AND SOUTH ESSEX 
SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PARTNERSHIP - TUESDAY, 13TH 
MARCH, 2018

Please find enclosed, for consideration at the next meeting of the Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee - Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership taking place on Tuesday, 13th March, 2018, the following report that was 
unavailable when the agenda was printed.

Agenda No Item

5. Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP)  
(Pages 1 - 94)

Report of Jo Cripps, Programme Director STP

Public Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



13th March 2018 ITEM: 

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Further update on the current consultation process on proposed hospital changes in 
mid and south Essex 

Report of: Jo Cripps, Programme Director, Mid and South Essex STP

Executive Summary 

In line with the relevant regulations a Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee 
comprising Members from Essex County Council, Southend Council and Thurrock Council 
has been established.

The consultation team attended the first formal meeting of the JHOSC on 20 February and 
an informal meeting of the Committee on 8 March.  

This paper is presented to provide further information on a number of questions and key 
lines of enquiry regarding the consultation process explored by the JHOSC at the previous 
formal meeting.  

1. Recommendation

1.1 The Committee is asked to note this update.

2. Background 

2.1 The Joint Committee of the CCGs in mid and south Essex launched a public 
consultation on 30 November 2017.  The consultation focuses on proposals to make 
changes to some hospital services in Southend, Chelmsford, Braintree and Basildon, as well 
as proposals to the transfer of services from Orsett Hospital in Thurrock to new centres 
closer to where people live. 

2.3 The original closing date for the consultation was 9 March 2018. Following feedback 
we proposed at the previous formal meeting of the JHOSC that we should extend the 
deadline for consultation responses. This was welcomed by the JHOSC and we have 
subsequently published the new deadline of 23 March 2018.

2.4 One of the 15 open discussion events, in Maldon, has been rescheduled from 28 

February to 21st March, due to the closure of the venue during the recent bad weather. 

3. The Consultation Process  

3.1 Following agreement of the CCG Joint Committee, the STP public consultation was 
launched on 30 November 2017.  A suite of materials has been produced, including a main 
consultation document (which benefited from input from all three scrutiny committees), a 
summary document, leaflet, feedback questionnaire and additional information.  

As per our Communications Plan, which was discussed by Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees of the three local authorities, consultation 

1

5

Page 9



materials are available in hard copy, as well as via the STP consultation website.  These 
materials have been made available in different formats and languages, on request.

We have commissioned an independent analysis of the feedback by an external 
organisation that is affiliated to The Consultation Institute.

This work will be completed between 26 March and 8 May 2018 when the outcome report 
will be published in full and will include an analysis of “reach”.

In the interim, before the final analysis has begun, we are able to provide a snapshot of 
activity at the current time and Members should note that it is common in public sector 
consultations for a significant number of responses to be received in the final week or days, 
which may change the current picture regarding feedback by each area.

3.2 Distribution

We have distributed consultation materials through the networks of the five clinical 
commissioning groups, the existing patient representative network associated with all health 
and care organisations and partners in the voluntary sector.

Activities include email notifications, information in newsletters and on websites, as well as 
social media platforms of all the health and care organisations and partners.

Examples of the types of places and groups in the distribution undertaken by the five CCGs 
in addition to GP practices and premises include:

Organisation Examples 

Basildon and Brentwood Local dental committee, voluntary sector groups, 
charities, hospice

Castlepoint and Rochford Citizens Advice Bureaux, fire stations, pharmacies, 
talking newspaper

Mid Essex District and city councils, County Council Health and 
Wellbeing newsletter, patient reference group

Southend Children’s centres, parish councils, libraries

Thurrock Community Hubs, Breastfeeding Club, Over 60’s 
Lunch Club, sheltered housing

3.3 Raising awareness

The consultation has been widely publicised through the local media including television, 
radio and local newspapers in editorial coverage.

As has been previously discussed the use of social media has been employed as both a 
promotion and engagement tool with Facebook and Twitter than main platforms.

2Page 10



In terms of promotion sponsored advertisements on Facebook has allowed targeted adverts 
to be placed on news feeds highlighting “local” opportunities to get involved based on 
location, for example advertising events in Chelmsford to those who live there and have 
Facebook accounts.

It has also enabled relevant posts to appear targeting key demographics based on for 
example age, health workers, religious affiliations and gender.

As of March 1 2018 information about the consultation has appeared on the newsfeeds of 
more than 180,000 people through the combination of paid advertising and via the STP 
Facebook page and more than 170,000 via their Twitter feed.

Aside from both traditional and social media a cascade approach has been adopted through 
established channels using key communicators across a range of local networks to reach a 
variety of groups and communities.

Examples of this approach include a focus group session with Thurrock Diversity Network 
supporting people with physical and or learning disabilities, formal letters to traveller liaison 
groups, articles run in weekly CVS updates to their membership and postal mail-louts to 
patients on CCG engagement databases without email addresses.

Healthwatch Essex, Healthwatch Southend and Health Thurrock have also supported this 
community cascade approach. The variety of activities has included:

 Essex: social media cascade, out and about in the Chatterbox Cab
 Southend: Mailshots and shopping centre promotional stands
 Thurrock: Face to face events, visits to sheltered housing

3.4 Engagement

Participants are encouraged to use an online feedback questionnaire to submit their views, 
but we also invite feedback in any of the following ways:

 By letter or email 
 Completing a paper questionnaire
 By attending a targeted focus group, where there is structured note taking
 By attending a larger “public” discussion event  with structured note taking 
 Over the telephone
 Posting and commenting via social media
 Attendance at meetings on request from community groups and partner 

organisations

We have also written to an extensive list of stakeholders, community groups, partner 
organisations, neighbouring STPs and condition specific support groups to ask them to 
respond formally with their views to the consultation.

As of March 1 2018 671 online surveys have been completed and 155 paper submissions 
with the top five highest responding postcodes being in order: SS1, CM1, CM2, RM1 and 
CM9.

3Page 11



This snapshot analysis shows a higher percentage of the online respondents are female and 
39 per cent of respondents indicate they are in the 56 -75 bracket compared to 14 per cent 
in the 16 to 35 age group

To date eight letters have been received and 125 emails.

As previously advised we have commissioned a telephone survey to a representative 
sample of 750 of population of mid and south Essex. As requested the script of this survey 
has been circulated to members.

The methodology for getting a representative sample by phone works in three stages:
1. Set quotas based on Census 2011 demographic data and then use data, where 

possible, with demographic markers to enable targetted calls
2. As conducted the team monitor for how effectively the sample is matching the set 

quotas
3. To target specific groups or once a quota is filled they filter surveys so that, for 

example, they can increase the number of under 35's etc.

3.5 Reaching minority groups

In line with our cascade approach the CVS organisations have written to their members to 
raise awareness of the consultation and encourage participation. These networks include a 
wide range of advocates and representatives of minority groups and has resulting in direct 
invitation to attend groups such as Southend Ethnic Minority Forum and Transpire (LGBT).

Letters have also been sent to groups aligned with the nine protected characteristics 
requesting they consider the proposals from the perspective of those they support.

This includes groups such as Age UK Essex, Royal Association for Deaf People, Blind 
Welfare, Stonewall, Traveller Liaison, Roma Support Group, Peaceful Place, YMCA, and 
Family Action.

A number of focussed group discussions have also been undertaken and includes sessions 
with young mums, representatives of the Jewish community and diversity coalitions.

3.6 Update on discussion events

At the time of writing we have held 11 larger style discussion events, with 15 planned in total.

The table below offers a headline view of the events held and all feedback gathered during 
these sessions will be incorporated into the independent feedback report.

Event Booked Est. 
Attendance

 Broad themes

9 January (Chelmsford): 18 25  support for the acute 
proposals 

 Concern at capacity 
in primary care

16 January (Wickford): 19 30  Understand the need 
for change

 Concerns about 

4Page 12



transport
 Funding needed for 

local primary care 
provision

17 January (Billericay): 9 35  Support for acute 
proposals

 Concerns around 
access to local 
community and 
primary health 
services


24 January (Thurrock): 59 60  Perceived loss of 

services from Orsett 
 Transport for patients 

and families
31 January (ARU, 
Chelmsford): 

73 30  Transport concerns 
in particular for renal 
patients

 High support for 
stroke proposals

 Concern at workforce 
challenges

7 February (Braintree): 16 30  Perceived as 
privatisation of NHS

 Concern over funding
 Clarity sought on 

future of Braintree 
Hospital future

8 February (Southend): 105 150  Perceived as cuts to 
services

 Concern over funding 
across NHS

 Transport both 
clinical and family

 Workforce challenge
 Over 100 submitted 

questions at end of 
event

20 February (Canvey): 85 50  Access to primary 
care

 Ambulance provision
 Funding

21 February (Brentwood): 29 30  Under utilisation of 
Brentwood 
Community Hospital

 Support for centres of 
excellence

5Page 13



 Concerns on access 
to primary care

27 February ( Basildon): 49 25  Concerns around 
access to primary 
care

 Perceived 
privatisation

 Concerns regarding 
funding

28 February (Maldon):

Postponed due to venue 
being closed due to weather

49 0

6 March (Thurrock) 14 45  Concerns regarding 
funding

 Loss of services at 
Orsett and in 
Thurrock generally

 Transport concerns
7 March (Rayleigh) 63 tbc

7 March (Southend) 126 tbc

8 March (South Woodham 
Ferrers)

23 tbc

21 March (Maldon) tbc tbc

Total 737

*Estimated attendance numbers are included as not all participants wish to sign in 

3.7 Responding to feedback

Throughout the consultation the team has responded to a number of requests and based on 
feedback received undertaken additional activities. Examples of this include:

 Additional events put on in Southend and South Woodham Ferrers
 Produced a video on the Orsett proposals
 Produced summary sheets on stroke, finance and transport
 Extended the deadline for responding to the consultation to March 23 2018
 Revisited GP practices to ensure materials are on display
 Undertaken paid advertising in the local media to promote the extended time frame

4 Background papers 

 Telephone survey script
 Published update on transport

6Page 14



 Questions and answers published from Southend event 8 February.

For further background information please visit www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk

7Page 15

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



1

NHS Mid and South Essex STP Your care in the best place consultation: telephone survey 
script 

Hi __, I am calling on behalf of the NHS in Essex. We are conducting a survey as part of a 
consultation around the plan for health and care in mid and south Essex. The call will take between 10 
and 15 minutes and all your views will be recorded anonymously. Would you be interested in taking 
part? 

[If yes, continue]

This consultation looks as some proposed changes to the way services are delivered, and we’d like to 
hear your views on what you think these health services should look like especially in hospitals. There 
are a number of different ways people can respond to the consultation. All the different kinds of 
responses will be considered to help inform decision making. This survey is just one of those, and asks 
for your general views on the overall principles around how care is delivered in our hospitals.  

BACKGROUND

Awareness

1. Have you heard about the ‘Your care in the best place’ consultation?

Yes – heard a lot Yes – heard a 
little

No – not at all

2.a) If Yes, where did you hear about it? (select all that apply)

Staff 
information

Local newspapers Radio Information in 
healthcare setting 
(eg. GP/hospital 
waiting room)

Newsletters/leaflets 
in community

Public 
meetings

Community 
noticeboards

Word of mouth Social media Other (please state)

2.b) If yes, have you read the consultation document?

Yes I have No I have not

Your care in the best place – in our hospitals 

NHS Mid and South Essex Sustainability Transformation Partnership, which is responsible for the 
health services provided in your area, wants the very best health and care for you and your family. To 
do this in the best way, the NHS Partnership wants to understand what is important to you.

One of the issues we are keen to hear your view on is how the NHS Partnership can provide care in 
the best place in the hospitals in the area.

There are five specific principles that we would welcome your views and comments on. We will 
describe each of these in a bit more detail.

3. Principle 1 is about improvements in A&E. The majority of hospital care will remain local, and 
each hospital will continue to have a 24-hour A&E department that receives ambulances. As well 

9Page 17



2

as this, there will be four assessment units with specially trained teams to meet the needs of older 
and frail people, children, and patients in need of urgent medical or surgical treatment.

What is your overall view of this proposed approach?

Strongly 
agree

Agree Neither agree 
nor disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

(don’t 
prompt) 
Don’t know

4. Please add any comments to explain your view or any issues that you think this approach might 
raise for you? 

5. Principle 2 is about some specialist services being brought together in one place. There are 
times, perhaps once or twice in a lifetime, when you may need the care of a dedicated specialist 
team in a hospital, for example if you had a complex heart, lung or kidney problem, or required 
gynaecological surgery. We are proposing that these specialist services, that usually require 
surgery and / or a hospital stay, should be provided in one place, where this would improve your 
care and chances of making a good recovery. You would stay with the specialist team for around 
three or four days, after which you would go home if you had made a good recovery, or return to 
your local hospital for further care and rehabilitation. What is your overall view of this proposed 
approach?

Strongly 
agree

Agree Neither agree 
nor disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

(don’t 
prompt) 
Don’t know

6. Please add any comments to explain your view or any issues that you think this approach might 
raise for you? 

7. Principle 3 is about improving access to specialist stroke care. Clinical evidence shows that 
fast action after a stroke prevents the brain damage caused by a stroke. If this is followed by a 
short period of the highest dependency care, provided by a team of specialists, then people can 
make a good recovery. At the moment none of the main hospitals (Basildon, Southend and 
Broomfield) has the right number of specialists to provide the level of care we are proposing. We 
want to continue to provide stroke care in each of the three hospitals but place the specialists we 
have in one specialist stroke unit in one of the hospitals (Basildon Hospital). What is your overall 
view of this proposed approach?

Strongly 
agree

Agree Neither agree 
nor disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

(don’t 
prompt) 
Don’t know

10Page 18



3

8. Please add any comments to explain your view or any issues that you think this approach might 
raise for you? 

9.   Principle 4 is about separating some planned operations from emergency cases. Evidence 
suggests that planned operations (such as those for bone fractures, bladder and kidney problems) 
should, where possible, be separated from patients who are coming into hospital in an emergency 
because it reduces delays in the planned operations and improves the quality of care. What is your 
overall view of this proposed approach?

Strongly 
agree

Agree Neither agree 
nor disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

(don’t 
prompt) 
Don’t know

10. Please add any comments to explain your view or any issues that you think this approach might 
raise for you? 

11. Principle 5 is about transferring services from Orsett Hospital to a number of new centres 
closer to where people live in Thurrock, for Thurrock residents, and to Basildon, Brentwood 
and Billericay, for residents of those areas. Some hospital services should be provided closer to 
you, at home or in a local health centre. The development of new “integrated medical centres” in 
Thurrock over the next two years and the development of health centre locations in Basildon town 
centre, Brentwood Community Hospital and St Andrew’s at Billericay, offers the opportunity to 
relocate tests, scans, outpatient appointments and treatments closer to where people live in south 
west Essex. Once the proposed new services are up and running, it would be possible to close 
Orsett Hospital which, although valued by many local people, is difficult to access by public 
transport and is an ageing site. What is your overall view of this proposed approach?

Strongly 
agree

Agree Neither agree 
nor disagree

Disagree Strongly 
disagree

(don’t 
prompt) 
Don’t know

12. Please add any comments to explain your view or any issues that you think this approach might 
raise for you? 

Transport and other comments

13. We are proposing a free bus service to support families and visitors, which could run between the 
three hospitals or other main locations. What are your views on how this service could best 
operate?

11Page 19



4

14. Are there any other considerations you think we should take into account when making 
final decisions about these proposals?

Finally we have a few questions about you, which help us to better understand the impact of 
any potential service changes upon different groups of people. 

15. Could you please begin by giving us your postcode?
16. In what capacity you are responding to this survey?

 Resident
 Patient and public representative
 Councillor
 Voluntary organisation / advocate
 Local authority officer
 GP / GP practice
 Social worker
 Community and mental health services representative
 Hospital clinician
 Hospital manager
 Other (please state):

17. What is your age?
 16-25
 26-35
 36-45
 46-55
 56-65
 66-75
 76 and over
 Prefer not to say

18. What is your gender?
 Male
 Female
 Other
 Prefer not to say

19. Is your gender different to that assigned to you at birth?
 Yes
 No
 Prefer not to say

20. Are you married or in a civil partnership?
 Yes
 No
 Prefer not to say

21. What is your sexual orientation?
 Heterosexual
 Gay woman / lesbian

12Page 20



5

 Gay man
 Bisexual
 If other, please specify:
 Prefer not to say

22. What is your religion or belief?
 No religion or belief
 Buddhist
 Christian
 Hindu
 Jewish
 Muslim
 Sikh
 If other, please specify:
 Prefer not to say

23. What is your ethnicity?
o White

 English
 Welsh
 Scottish
 Northern Irish
 Irish
 British
 Gypsy or Irish traveller
 Any other white background, please write in:

o Mixed / multiple ethnic groups
 White and Black Caribbean
 White and Black African
 White and Asian
 Any other mixed background, please write in:

o Asian / Asian British
 Indian
 Pakistani
 Bangladeshi
 Chinese
 Any other Asian background, please write in:

o Black / African / Caribbean / Black British
 British
 African
 Caribbean
 Any other Black background, please write in:

o Other
 Other (please write in):
 Prefer not to say

24. Do you consider yourself to have a disability or health condition?
 Yes (If you wish to give further information about your condition please do
 so here:)

13Page 21



6

 No
 Prefer not to say

25. Do you have caring responsibilities? (tick all that apply)
 None
 Primary carer of a child/children (under 18)
 Primary carer of disabled child / children
 Primary carer of disabled adult (18 and over)
 Primary carer of older person
 Secondary carer (another person carries out the main caring role)
 Other (please specify):
 Prefer not to say

26. How would you normally travel to your local NHS hospital? (all that apply)
 Drive yourself
 On foot
 Public transport
 Taken by friend
 Taken by relative
 Other (please write in):

Thank you for taking the time to answer this survey. Your response is very important to us. 
The findings of this consultation will be published on the NHS Mid and South Essex website 
after the consultation closes in March 2018.

If you’d like to respond to the main consultation questionnaire or find out about other ways of 
having your say on the consultation, please visit the website 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/ 

14Page 22

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/


PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

1 
 

 

Your care in the best place 
At home, in your community and in our hospitals 

 

Mid & South Essex Sustainability & Transformation Partnership  

Update paper on steps taken to plan for a proposed patient transfer service 

Published 8 March 2018 

Why we need an expanded clinical transfer service for mid and south Essex? 

The STP for mid and south Essex is currently consulting with the public about proposed 

changes to some hospital services. More detail on these proposals can be found on the 

consultation website:  www.nhsmidandsouthessex.nhs.uk 

As part of the Acute Hospital Reconfiguration Plan for the Mid and South Essex STP it is 

proposed that all emergency patients continue to be assessed at  Accident and Emergency 

departments located at the three hospitals (Mid Essex Hospital Services NHS Trust, Southend 

University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and Basildon & Thurrock University Hospital NHS 

Foundation Trust). Patients will receive initial treatment and stabilisation in these hospitals.  

Local clinicians have reached agreement through the development of these proposals that a 

cohort of patients would benefit from continuing their treatment at a specialised unit. When this 

unit is not located at the same site as the presenting A&E department, there will be a 

requirement to transfer the patient to the specialist unit. This is in addition to the current 

established pathways which exist between the hospitals for Burns and Plastics `patients, 

Cardiology and Cardiothoracic patients, ENT and Maxillofacial patients and cancer patients. 

This document outlines the present status of our discussions around how such transfers might 

be supported. 

From the modelling assumptions made for the pre-consultation business case, and as 

described in the public consultation, we anticipate that on average 15 patients per day will 

require inter-hospital transport following emergency presentation at A&E. This figure is likely to 

vary due to demand and patient specific factors; proposals are still subject to public consultation 

and work is on-going to refine clinical models with clinical teams. Appropriate repatriation of 

patients from specialist units needs to be considered as part of this work. 

Under current proposals out to public consultation, inter-hospital transfers may be required for 

patients needing the following specialist care: 

Specialist care required Site of specialist centre Transfer may be needed 
from 

Complex Vascular care  Specialist Unit Basildon Southend & Broomfield 

Complex cardiology care (a 
small number of additional 
transfers to existing current 
pathways) 

Specialist Unit Essex 
Cardiothoracic Centre 

Southend & Broomfield 

Complex Renal care Specialist Unit Basildon Southend & Broomfield 

Stroke patients (needing up to 
72 hours HASU care) 

Specialist Stroke Centre 
Basildon 

Southend & Broomfield 

Complex Respiratory care Specialist Unit Basildon Southend & Broomfield 

Non-Cancer Urology Specialist Unit Basildon & Southend 

15Page 23

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.nhs.uk/


PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

2 
 

Emergencies Broomfield 

Complex abdominal surgical 
care 

Specialist Unit 
Broomfield 

Basildon & Southend 

 

Likely numbers of patients who could require transfer between hospitals from modelling are: 

Originating hospital Receiving hospital Potential no. of 
patients/day 

Broomfield Southend 0-1 

Broomfield Basildon 2-3 

Southend Broomfield 5-6 

Southend Basildon 3-4 

Basildon Broomfield 3-4 

Basildon Southend 0-1 

 

The clinical transfer of patients is not a discharge, but transfer from a bed at one mid and south 

Essex hospital to another mid and south Essex hospital. There will be clear communications 

materials displayed and available to all patients and relatives explaining this process.  A 

patient’s transfer will occur once they have attended their local hospital and have been 

assessed and had initial treatment commenced and any immediate clinical stabilisation required 

completed. It will be the senior clinician in charge of the patient’s care who decides that their 

patient is ready to transfer to another hospital for specialist care, or after specialist care, to 

return to a hospital closer to home for ongoing care.  Local clinical teams are currently 

developing specialty specific plans to ensure clarity around the conditions which are anticipated 

to benefit from this process 

What steps have we taken to understand how similar clinical transfer services work? 

We have examined existing models of inter-hospital transfer which have similarities to our 

proposals around England – including input from Northumbria, London, Staffordshire, Cumbria, 

the Pennines and West Yorkshire1. In these areas, as in many across the country, hospitals 

work together as a network and patients may be transferred during their admission to hospital 

for access to more specialist care, or to bring them back to a hospital closer to home after care 

elsewhere. These processes have been running for a number of years and have been carried 

out safely. Research internationally has shown that inter-hospital collaborations for a similar 

size of population as mid and south Essex can be effective in helping patients access high 

quality care2  

Guidelines produced by the Association of Anaesthetists of Great Britain and Ireland following a 

working party examining the evidence, indicated that transfer of patients between hospitals can 

be safely accomplished even in extremely ill patients.  It was noted that the decision to transfer 

must involve a senior and experienced clinician, and that hospitals should form transfer 

networks to coordinate and manage clinically indicated transfers. By working together as a 

single team across the three hospitals in mid and south Essex we can make sure we are able to 

achieve this. Guidelines for the transport of the critically ill adult from the Intensive Care Society 

provide a framework for the development of robust safety standards which are nationally 

recognised.3 

                                                           
1
 West Yorkshire Inter-Facility Transfer algorithm, October 2012 

2
 Quality of Care and Interhospital Collaboration: A Study of Patient Transfers in Italy, Lomi et al, Med Care. 2014 

May ; 52(5): 407–414 
3
AAGB Safety Guideline: Interhospital Transfer; The Association of Anaesthetists of Great Britain and Ireland, 2009 

16Page 24



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

3 
 

 

Transfer of patients for medical and surgical specialist care is common in other systems for a 

variety of patient focused benefits, such as at East Kent Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust which 

has redesigned the service model in medicine in order to improve patient care/safety out-of-

hours and at weekends along with ensuring appropriate supervision/support for trainees. The 

model is based on a “hot”(emergency) and “cold” (planned admission) site model4;  at Kings 

College NHS Foundation Trust established a new day case ‘treat and transfer Endoscopic 

Retrograde Cholangio-Pancreatography (ERCP)’ service. The new service allows local 

hospitals to transfer inpatients requiring urgent ERCP to King’s endoscopy unit for a day case 

ERCP procedure. Patients are discharged back to their referring hospitals after four hours 

observation period post completion of ERCP. A peer-reviewed study showed all patients were 

safely discharged back to their referring hospitals after the short observation period post-ERCP. 

No complications related to anaesthesia or endoscopies were reported peri- or post- 

procedure.5 

From the existing evidence base, it is clear that communication, efficiency and appropriateness 

are key factors that are advanced as impacting on the quality and safety of non-emergency 

transport services. Standardization of the non-emergency transport process shows promise in 

reducing risk and increasing efficiency.6 

1. How are patients transferred between services at the moment? 

At the moment in mid and south Essex, we do transfer patients for specialist care between our 

hospitals with current agreed pathways operating for cardiology patients (to and from the Essex 

Cardiothoracic Centre in Basildon), for patients needing care for burns and plastic surgery (to 

and from St Andrews Burns Centre at the Broomfield site), and for patients needing 

maxillofacial and ENT services (to and from Broomfield Hospital). 

The current system for transfer of critically ill patients will continue and is not affected by this 

process ( e.g. level 3,2 inter hospital ITU transfers, Neurosurgical Emergency transfers to 

neurosurgical units, major trauma patients transferring from trauma Units to Trauma centres). 

All clinical pathways for transfer are developed jointly with A&E clinicians and speciality leads 

including the safeguarding of high risk patients. 

CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE DESIGN OF A TRANFER SERVICE 

This paper outlines a number of the key areas where clinicians are working together to think 

about the design and safe delivery of an extended clinical transfer service for inpatients across 

mid and south Essex, as this forms an important enabling aspect of current proposals. This 

document is not a policy or clinical guideline in any way, it is aimed to provide an update on 

work ongoing and help stimulate further discussion with partners and patients as any plans 

progress following the close of consultation. 

 

2. How will we assess patients for transfer and decide who should be transferred? 

Within the Treat and Transfer Model all patients within this category of transport (i.e. excluding 

those critically ill patients such as trauma already cared for in the present system) will be 

                                                           
4
 http://www.nact.org.uk/getfile/4633/ 

5
 http://gut.bmj.com/content/66/Suppl_2/A76.1 

6
 Isla M. Hains, Anne Marks, Andrew Georgiou, Johanna I. Westbrook; Non-emergency patient transport: what are 

the quality and safety issues? A systematic review, International Journal for Quality in Health Care, Volume 23, 
Issue 1, 1 February 2011, Pages 68–75 

17Page 25



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

4 
 

assessed and stabilised in the presenting Emergency Department before safe transfer to the 

specialised site. Any potential transfer would require patients to have had a chance to discuss 

and consent to transfer, and senior clinician-to-clinician communication across sites. It is 

important to remember that it is only a specific cohort of patients presenting to our hospitals 

who will be transferred – these are patients for whom there is clinical agreement that their 

ongoing management, following initial stabilisation, will benefit from concentrated specialist 

input 

Leadership 

We will identify a Lead Clinician across the three hospitals who will ensure that appropriate 

pathways are developed where necessary, transfer protocols are in line with best practice and 

system quality assurance programmes are in place. We have identified a lead clinician to take 

forward current proposals, and we would aim to build on this as the new A&E and Emergency 

Care Hub model develops, hopefully strengthened and accelerated by these proposals. The 

lead clinician will oversee audit and ongoing data collection on the transfer service and report 

these data and exceptions to the relevant Patient Safety & Quality Committees of the Trust 

Boards to ensure that the Board is sighted on the safe development and running of the service. 

As with all trust clinical services, the service will be connected to incident and risk reporting and 

appropriate in-house escalation policies. 

Each hospital medical management team will identify a nominated clinician who will work with 

the Lead Clinician on system development and act as the main hospital contact point for the 

service issues. 

Prioritisation of transfers 

There needs to be an agreed priority and response time for the service which is audited and 

part of the quality assurance process. This will be determined when we have finalised the detail 

of commissioned services and locations, however looking at similar approaches, initial options 

include: Setting a single response time for all such transfers e.g. 30/45/60 minutes from alert to 

vehicle arriving;  or alternatively having a response time according to individual patient urgency 

according to categories of need ( C1,2,3). As we plan the individual clinical pathways we will 

define a clear process involving agreed senior clinical input for the decision to transfer a patient 

from one hospital to a specialist unit, and the process of confirming acceptance and tracking to 

agreed priority timescales. 

 

3. What will the transfer involve? 

The current arrangements which are in place to transfer category 2 (patients requiring more 

detailed observation or intervention including support for a single failing organ system or post-

operative care) and category 3 (patients requiring advanced respiratory support alone or 

monitoring and support for two or more organ systems) requiring transfer between critical care 

facilities, or transfer to specialist units (e.g. Neurosurgical centres, Trauma centres) will remain 

in place and are not affected by these proposals. 

This system will utilise road-based transport modes only, and vehicles used will meet current 

best practice standards, equipped with the appropriate monitoring and life support equipment to 

enable safe patient transfer. The specification for these vehicles and items will be determined 

once appropriate advice has been obtained from relevant national bodies. 

 

 

18Page 26



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

5 
 

Staffing the transfer service 

Inter-hospital transfers at the level proposed will require dedicated transport teams who will 

manage patient care during transport, hand the patient over to the receiving team at the 

hospital, and ensure that communication between hospital teams, patients and relatives is 

optimal. The level of support needing to be provided from within the team for each transfer will 

be driven by patient-specific risk assessments. It will be important also in developing the 

workforce model for the team, that the constitution of this team must not denude the hospital of 

vital staff, but instead offer an additional development opportunity and career option to attract 

new skills to the system.   

The opportunity to consider engaging with the PHEM (Pre Hospital Emergency Medicine) 

doctor training scheme, Advanced Paramedic training scheme and CEM Advanced Care 

Practitioner schemes will  be investigated, as will the opportunity to engage with other Allied 

Health Practitioners who carry out transport roles in other systems (such as Operating 

Department Practitioners) The ability to create roles which retains paramedic and emergency 

medical doctors in the area is a potential strength of this process. 

All staff involved in patient transfers should have appropriate training and competencies. The 

competency framework outlined in the Intensive Care Society “Guidelines for the transport of 

the critically ill adult” (3rd Edition 2011) are suggested for this programme (see Appendix). 

Transfer coordination 

A group wide, cross-site system to coordinate patient transfers will be developed to coordinate 

timely transfer, aligned to bed availability and appropriate logistics oversight. This will be 

embedded in the development of the hospital group-wide bed management process which has 

already begun to some extent across the system (e.g. 2017/8 winter coordination) and will 

develop further through application of Teletracking planned for roll-out from 2018, and 

integration of digital systems and standardisation of site management and discharge processes 

which are in train within the STP. 

Communication with patients and families/carers 

Communication between hospitals, between medical teams and with patient and relatives is 

paramount in the transfer of patients. Patients will be informed at the earliest opportunity of the 

need for a transfer and provided with an explanation of why the transfer is necessary. Consent 

from the patient and input from carers will be sought in the decision to transfer. With the 

consent of the patient, their relatives, friends or others will also be advised of transfers to 

another hospital. If a patient with capacity refuses to transfer to a location which is thought to be 

best for their care their wishes will be adhered to and every effort will be made to optimise care 

where they wish to remain including specialists travelling to the patient if required or directing 

optimal care from the specialist centre.  

If a clinician or the clinical team consider patient transfer not to be in the patient’s best interest 

then the patient will not transfer and every effort will be made to optimise patient care including 

specialists travelling to the patient or directing care from the specialist unit.    

Preparation for transport 

Patients should be appropriately resuscitated and stabilised prior to transfer to reduce the risk 

of deterioration during the transfer, and discussion with the patient and/or carers about the need 

for transfer been conducted and understanding checked. A risk assessment process of each 

patient will determine the level of anticipated risk during transfer. The outcome of this risk 

assessment will be used to determine the competencies of the staff required to accompany the 

patient during transfer. The risk assessment tool provided by the Intensive Care Society in their 

19Page 27



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

6 
 

2011 document is provided at appendix 2. This was developed prior to the NEWS tool and 

could be adapted for use within this system coupled with clinical judgement. This assessment 

will be carried out by a suitably experienced member of the medical staff and will form part of 

the transfer record.  

Pre departure checklists should be used to ensure that all the necessary preparations have 

been completed and should form part of the transfer record. Examples of checklists from the 

Intensive care Society document are provided at Appendix 3. 

Monitoring and safety during transport 

Monitoring during transport should be in line with current best practice and should mirror, as a 

minimum, the monitoring which would be provided for an individual patient in hospital. Every 

effort should be made to ensure that there is compatibility in monitoring systems across the 

three hospitals and with the transport provider. Standardised documentation should be 

developed across the system and should be used for all transfers. This should form part of the 

patient record, it should contain a core data set for audit purposes. Appropriate safety restraints 

for patients, staff and equipment bags and monitoring equipment should be in place during 

transport. These should conform to current best practice. 

Assurance will be in place on this procedural, technical and administrative compatibility and the 

safety of continuous patient monitoring prior to any transfer pathway being initiated.  

4. How will we make sure that the transfer service is safe? 

The Lead Clinician must ensure that adequate governance arrangements are in place across 

the system and that all patient transfers are subject to audit, clinical incident reporting and 

review. 

Comprehensive, specialty specific, clinical guidelines should be developed. 

Appropriate insurance and indemnity should be in place to cover all involved in the transfer 

Who have we worked with on these draft plans so far? 

Work to think about a clinical transfer service began in earnest in Summer 2017, and has been 

led by Dr. Ronan Fenton, Medical Director for the hospital programme of the STP and 

Consultant Anaesthetist who works at Mid Essex Hospital and with the Herts and Essex Air 

Ambulance.  A group of emergency department clinicians from across the three local hospitals, 

and including East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust, has been meeting regularly to 

develop plans and continues to do so.  

External clinicians who form part of the East of England Clinical Senate also reviewed 

proposals for the “treat and transfer” model for emergency inpatients who need specialist care 

as part of their Stage 1 review in September 2017.  

In addition to input from East of England Ambulance Service, we have also had contributions 

from the North East London Trauma network, East of England Trauma Network and the Mid & 

South Essex STP Strategic A&E Delivery Board. We have also taken advice from other parts of 

the UK operating inter-hospital transfer, and from the relevant medical societies mentioned 

during the document. The topic of inter-hospital transfer has been discussed (in some cases in 

detail) with GPs and primary care colleagues across out STP during engagement, and with 

hospital staff and the local public as part of public consultation. Hundreds of comments and 

questions about transport have been received to date.  

 

20Page 28



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

7 
 

What are the next steps to take forward a proposed patient transfer service in mid and 

south Essex? 

In order to validate and further iterate assumptions about the numbers and particular clinical 

categories of patients who might require transfer in these proposals, a local real-life audit has 

been undertaken against existing patient records. Clinicians within the trusts have examined 

patient details to understand how the transfer model might work in these cases. To date the 

audit is supporting planning assumptions on patient volumes as outlined in the consultation 

document. It is planned to undertake two further audit for longer periods of time during March 

and April 2018 to help validate this further and add detail to draft plans.   

The “treat and transfer” model which forms part of key proposals of hospital changes will be 

examined again in detail by the East of England Clinical Senate, during their site visit to 

Basildon Hospital in April 2018, and the final Stage 2 panel review. The Senate will provide 

independent advice to commissioners about the likely safety and viability of the model, based 

on their review of evidence.  

Within the local Sustainability and Transformation Partnership, a planning group begins work 

developing more detail of any transport service (including working up opportunities to enhance 

staff, elective patient and patient relative transport opportunities) and steps to implementation 

from April 2018.However further work will be done in earnest to develop and test plans for the 

best provider options once a decision is made by commissioners about the future model of care 

for hospital services in mid and south Essex. We anticipate this to be in Summer 2018. 

Commissioners and leadership of the trusts will require full assurance about the plans for any 

transfer service, the equipment, processes, vehicles and workfare for its safe implementation 

before any changes would be put into practice. 

 

 

 

  

21Page 29



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

8 
 

Mid and South Essex Sustainability & Transformation Partnership Update paper on steps 

taken to plan for a proposed patient transfer service 

 

Appendices: supporting materials 

 

Appendix 1 - DRAFT - Competencies of accompanying personnel likely to support dedicated 

transfer team, taken from the Intensive Care Society “Guidelines for the transport of the 

critically ill adult” (3rd Edition 2011) 

 
Core competencies required of all staff (levels required appropriate to role)  

Knowledge  Knowledge of Local / Network / National transport 
guidelines  
Understands the principles of safe transfer of 
patients  
Knowledge of ambulance / transfer environment and 
associated health and safety issues and relevant 
legislation  
Knowledge of Advanced Life Support guidelines  

Skills  Use of oxygen, respiratory therapies and portable 
ventilator  
Use of basic monitoring (ECG, NIBP, Pulse 
oximetry)  
Use of transport equipment  
Competent to carry out advanced life support  

Attitudes and Behaviour  Evidence of good team working  
Evidence that plans for and prevents problems 
during transfer  
Understands the benefit of pre-transfer check lists 
and uses these in clinical practice.  
Understands the need for good communication with 
referring & receiving institutions & teams and 
evidence of this in practice.  
Completes all required documentation including 
clinical notes / observations charts / audit forms.  
Seeks support from senior / more experienced 
colleagues appropriately 

 

Competencies required by medical staff to undertake level 2/3 transfer  
Additional competencies which may be required by medical staff to undertake level 2 / 3 transfer, 
depending on the clinical condition of the patient and the outcome of pre-transfer risk assessment. 
  

 
Knowledge  

 
Knowledge of physiology of critical illness  
Knowledge of pharmacology of drugs including 
sedatives / muscle relaxants / inotropes and 
vasopressors  
Knowledge of the physiological effects of the transfer 
process and acceleration / deceleration forces in the 
critically ill  

22Page 30



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

9 
 

 
Skills  

 
Use of a structured approach for assessment of 
critically ill patient prior to transfer 
Ability to interpret blood gases, and other clinically 
relevant investigations 
Ability to identify potential needs of patient prior to 
and during transfer 
Ability to respond to changes in the patient’s condition 
during transfer including ability to undertake the 
following procedures if required 
• Basic / advanced respiratory support 
• Bag mask ventilation 
• Intubation 
• Emergency needle decompression / chest drainage 
• Resuscitation / optimisation of haemodynamic status 
including appropriate use of fluids / inotropes / 
vasopressors 
• Management of dysrhythmias including cardiac 
arrest 
• Ability to care for arterial lines / central lines and 
other indwelling catheters and to use / access 
appropriately 

Attitudes and Behaviours  Ability to assume leadership role during transfer 
Ability to provides clear and precise structured 
handover to receiving unit 

 

Competencies required for second attendant accompanying level 2/3 patient  

 
Knowledge  

 
Knowledge of the physiology of critical illness  
Knowledge of the administration of drugs likely to be 
required during transfer (includes sedatives / muscle 
relaxants / inotropes and vasopressors  
Knowledge of the potential problems associated with 
movement acceleration / deceleration forces  

Skills   
Ability to carry out appropriate nursing observations 
and nursing care in the transport environment.  
Ability to assist with:  

• Airway support - including intubation  
• Respiratory support - including use of oxygen therapy 

devices and basic ventilator operation  
• cardiovascular resuscitation  
• Fluid management including the preparation of 

infusions  
• The use of sedative drugs and the use of syringe 

pumps  

 

  

23Page 31



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

10 
 

Appendix 2 – DRAFT - Patient risk assessment/stratification prior to transfer 

Adapted from The Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust: Transfer Policy 2010  

 
1. No transfer is so urgent as to compromise patient safety.  
2. The potential benefits of any transfer must be weighed against the clinical risk. 
3. Prior to any transfer a risk assessment must be undertaken to identify the level of 

anticipated risk and hence the competencies required of the staff who will accompany 
the patient.  

 
Risk assessment should include the following:  
 

• Clinical History: Are there any specific risks related to the underlying condition and / or co-
morbidity which the patient might encounter during transfer?  

 

• Current Clinical Condition: Is the patient stable and / or what is the trend? Use a recognised 
track and trigger scoring system (e.g. MEWS) and if possible allow sufficient time for more 
than one observation.  

 

• Other information available from additional monitoring (e.g. oxygen saturation) and / or 
specific investigations (e.g. lactate, blood glucose, base deficit, arterial pH)  

 

• The anticipated length of the journey, mode of transport and any specific transport related 
issues.  

 
 

Modified Early Warning Score:  

Score        3         2               1    0  1  2  3  

HR  <40  40-50  51-100  101-110  111-129  >130  

BP systolic  <70  71-80  81-100  101-170  171-199  >200  

RR  <7  9-14  19-22  23-29  >30  

Temp  <34.9  35.0-38.3  >38.4  

CNS  New confusion 
agitation  

Alert  Voice  Pain  Unresponsive  

 

  

24Page 32



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

11 
 

Appendix 3 – DRAFT- Example Pre-Departure Checklist  

Taken from the Intensive Care Society “Guidelines for the transport of the critically ill adult” 

(3rd Edition 2011) 

Pre Transfer checklist – Is patient stable for transfer? 

Airway  
• Airway safe or secured by intubation  
• Tracheal tube position confirmed on chest x-ray  
Ventilation  
• Adequate spontaneous respiration or ventilation established on transport ventilator  
• Adequate gas exchange confirmed by arterial blood gas  
• Sedated and paralysed as appropriate  
Circulation  
• Heart rate, BP optimised  
• Tissue & organ perfusion adequate  
• Any obvious blood loss controlled  
• Circulating blood volume restored  
• Haemoglobin adequate  
• Minimum of two routes of venous access  
• Arterial line and central venous access if appropriate  
Neurology  
• Seizures controlled, metabolic causes excluded  
• Raised intracranial pressure appropriately managed  
Trauma  
• Cervical spine protected  
• Pneumothoraces drained  
• Intra-thoracic & intra-abdominal bleeding controlled  
• Intra-abdominal injuries adequately investigated and appropriately managed  
• Long bone / pelvic fractures stabilised  
Metabolic  
• Blood glucose > 4 mmol/l  
• Potassium < 6 mmol/l  
• Ionised Calcium > 1 mmol/l  
• Acid – base balance acceptable  
• Temperature maintained  
Monitoring  
• ECG  
• Blood pressure  
• Oxygen saturation  
• End tidal carbon dioxide  
• Temperature 

Pre-transfer Check list 2. Are you ready for departure?  
Patient  
• Stable on transport trolley  
• Appropriately monitored  
• All infusions running and lines adequately secured and labelled  
• Adequately sedated and paralysed  
• Adequately secured to trolley  
• Adequately wrapped to prevent heat loss  
• Staff  
• Transfer risk assessment completed  
• Staff adequately trained and experienced  
• Received appropriate handover  
• Adequately clothed and insured  

25Page 33



PAPER FOR DISCUSSION - DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FINAL PLAN 
 

12 
 

Equipment  
• Appropriately equipped ambulance  
• Appropriate equipment and drugs  
• Pre-drawn up medication syringes appropriately labelled and capped  
• Batteries checked (spare batteries available)  
• Sufficient oxygen supplies for anticipated journey  
• Portable phone charged and available  
• Money for emergencies  
Organisation  
• Case notes, x-rays, results, blood collected  
• Transfer documentation prepared  
• Location of bed and receiving doctor known  
• Receiving unit advised of departure time and estimated time of arrival  
• Telephone numbers of referring and receiving units available  
• Relatives informed  
• Return travel arrangements in place  
• Ambulance crew briefed  
• Police escort arranged if appropriate  
Departure  
• Patient trolley secured  
• Electrical equipment plugged into ambulance power supply where available  
• Ventilator transferred to ambulance oxygen supply  
• All equipment safely mounted or stowed  
• Staff seated and wearing seat belts 

 

 

26Page 34



Page 1 of 68 
 

Questions from Southend Public Discussion Event 

Cliffs Pavilion 

8th February 2018 

These questions have been transcribed from the original question submitted from the event on 8th February, as such there 

are a number of questions that appear more than once (as the same question was submitted by more than one person). 

All personal information has been removed from this document however, where individuals provided a contact email 

address, we will email a personal response.   

 

Question Submitted Response 
 

1. Workforce is clearly a 
significant challenge.  What is 
the solution to the workforce 
problem if we don’t change to 
the future model?  Are we 
better to try something rather 
than just be sitting ducks? 

All health and care organisations across mid and south Essex are working together 
with Health Education England (HEE) and unions to develop our workforce across the 
health and care spectrum. 
 
Action is coordinated by a Local Workforce Action Board chaired jointly by Dr Caroline 

Dollery (Chair, Mid Essex CCG) and Sally Morris (Chief Executive of Essex Partnership 

University Trust).  

We agree that workforce is a challenge.  Our local NHS is struggling to offer round-the-
clock, responsive services patients need; now and in future, we will need to recruit 
and retain the right workforce. There is no simple solution to the workforce supply 
gap, which is manifest across most of England, but working together in mid and south 

27
P

age 35



Page 2 of 68 
 

Essex across our hospitals and wider community to think about the skills and roles we 
need, and adopting innovative approaches, will help address this.  
 
Our current proposals for hospital services would see concentration of expert skills in 
many cases, helping to reduce the strain on key specialist roles. We have already seen 
in mid and south Essex that working together as one team across the three hospitals 
has helped recruit staff, as it offers less intensive working patterns and a broader 
range of work and opportunity that we can offer to skilled clinicians.. NHS Employers 
and national regulators have noted that organisations able to do this are better at 
retaining their staff.  
 
In terms of the medical workforce, we have a number of schemes in place. Anglia 
Ruskin University is planning, subject to final approvals, to open a School of Medicine 
in 2018 at its Chelmsford Campus.  Having such a facility locally will assist with our 
workforce challenges over coming years as many students who study at the school will 
take up local placements and, once qualified, many may wish to stay in the area. 
 
The primary care workforce strategy and delivery is overseen by the Primary Care 
Transformation and Development Group, a sub-group of the Local Workforce Action 
Board, and is supported by close working links with Health Education England. 
 

2. Without funding for the 
recruitment/training of staff, 
these proposals will not work.  
What guarantees are there to 
ensure that you will be able to 

There is substantial funding to recruit and train staff. The money to train clinicians is 
separate from the funding we receive for healthcare, and managed by Health 
Education England, which monitors needs and trends to determine the number of 
training places required each year. 
 

28
P

age 36



Page 3 of 68 
 

implement this? Locally we use various ways to recruit and retain talent (see response to Question 1, 
above).   
 
Within the hospitals, we already spend significant sums on locums and bank staff to 
cover rota gaps; therefore, the ability to employ substantive (permanent) staff would 
be more affordable in the long term. 
  

3. Patients awaiting transfer 
between hospitals will be 
delayed by waiting for their 
medication.  How will you be 
able to speed up the process 
from the pharmacy to give 
these people lesser waiting 
times? 

We recognise that there are sometimes delays in providing medicines to patients 
upon discharge, and we already have a range of processes in place to help reduce 
delays, such as having medicines ordered in advance, and delivering medicines to 
patients after discharge.  However, patients requiring transfer between hospitals 
would not be required to wait for medicines as their medication needs would be met 
at the receiving hospital. All the patients’ needs would be documented and 
communicated through any transfer process, and a coordinated pharmacy process for 
the hospitals. 
 

4. The road networks are 
abysmal.  With proposed 
“improvements” to A127/A130 
Fairglen Interchange with years 
of roadworks, you would be 
better off building a train 
network between the 3! 
 

We have noted your view and will ensure it is taken into account in decision-making. 

5. Much of the money in our 
hospitals is spent  on agency 

Pay frameworks in the NHS are set nationally, and linked to particular aspects of each 
role. There are clear national processes we need to follow on pay and conditions.  

29
P

age 37



Page 4 of 68 
 

nurses.  Money could be saved 
by rewarding current staff and 
improving their morale.  Why 
can’t they be paid more in 
order to retain them? 

 
It is true that across our providers we currently spend significant sums on agency and 
bank staff to fill rota gaps and cover vacancies. With three hospitals working together 
there are opportunities to develop permanent staff and promote a “home grown” 
workforce for the future. 
 
We know that valuing our staff, engaging them in improving services, offering them 
chances to develop their skills and to have a range of working patterns is really 
important. We think that the proposals for hospital services give us a better chance to 
do that for specialist teams, and we will of course look to make sure that all staff have 
the opportunity to contribute to plans.  Our ultimate aim is to employ a well-
motivated and rewarded substantive workforce across the area, in organisations that 
engage all our staff and offer an exciting range of career options in health and care.   
 

6. I would like to see the data on 
which your evidence has based 
that transporting vulnerable 
stroke patients will have an 
improved service?  Where is 
the traffic data?  Are you 
wanting to tender the transport 
used here to a private 
company? – In which case how 
will this be an improved service 
regarding cost and having 
specialist staff on board for the 

The data to support the proposed model for stroke care is included in a summary of 
the clinical evidence we have reviewed in developing proposals for hospital services. 
This document is downloadable from 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/  
 
You may also find it helpful to read the policies supported by The Stroke Association, 

which explain the benefits of a specialist stroke unit, based on national clinical 

evidence. This can be found on The Stroke Association website at 

https://www.stroke.org.uk/what-we-do/about-us/our-policy-positions 

 

30
P

age 38

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/
https://www.stroke.org.uk/what-we-do/about-us/our-policy-positions


Page 5 of 68 
 

transit? It is important to note, however, that the proposals we are putting forward for mid 

and south Essex are not the same as the nationally recognised good practice that was 

implemented in London and Manchester, which is quoted within the national clinical 

evidence. In London and Manchester, people who have experienced a stroke are 

taken directly to a specialist stroke unit, or hyper acute stroke unit as it is known. Our 

proposal is that patients should be taken to their nearest A&E for assessment, 

diagnosis and initial treatment. Then the patient may be transferred to a specialist 

stroke unit in Basildon, if it was assessed that the patient would benefit from such a 

transfer.  

 
The reason this option is preferred by our local stroke consultants is that it preserves 

the vital time to assessment and initial treatment, but also means that we can 

improve the patient’s outcomes by getting the right level of doctors, nurses and 

therapists to provide the really intensive support in the specialist stroke unit, in the 

subsequent critical 72 hours. This is what the clinical evidence suggests gives patients 

a better chance of a good recovery.   

 
The transfer time between hospitals is less critical than the time to initial treatment 
and stabilisation in the nearest A&E. It is only after the patient was stabilised that they 
would be transferred to Basildon Hospital for a period of intensive support and 
treatment (approx. 72 hours) in the proposed specialist stroke unit. 
 

31
P

age 39



Page 6 of 68 
 

Once this period was over, the patient may be able to go home (if their condition has 
improved significantly), or come back to their local hospital for on-going care and 
rehabilitation.    
 
Patients who are transferred to Basildon would travel via a dedicated clinical transport 
vehicle that meets national specification for clinical transport, and only when safe to 
do so and in discussion with the patient and their family.  They would be accompanied 
by an appropriate clinical team to support them on the journey. Evidence from the UK 
and internationally – reviewed for us by UCLPartners and by the East of England 
Clinical Senate – has shown this transfer can be done safely. A summary of this 
evidence is on our website at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/ 
 
In relation to the provider of this clinical transport, no decisions have been reached as 
yet as we need to await the CCG commissioning decisions on hospital services before 
we can accurately specify the service required. 
   

7. Will the staff at Southend have 
their salaries raised to match 
Basildon? 

Although Southend has local terms and conditions, they do mirror the national NHS 
terms and conditions under the Agenda for Change framework. Basildon has the 
fringe allowance which may result in higher overall compensation at present due to 
zoning of payments for the London fringe allowance – these zones are set nationally. 
Pay frameworks are linked to particular aspects of each role, and there are clear 
processes we need to follow on pay and conditions.  
 

8. Will patient/carer shuttle bus 
be operating 24/7? 

We will be working over the coming months to identify the requirement for the family 
transport service including how it will be provided, hours of operation, where it 

32
P

age 40



Page 7 of 68 
 

should run from/to, etc. and will be involving existing patients and carers in our work. 
  

9. What about transport for staff?  
No one been to talk to me 

We do not expect that many staff will need to work across sites, but where this is the 
case, we would work with them to make the most appropriate arrangements.  
 
Under the current proposals for changes in some specialist services, only consultants 

in those specialist areas would potentially work across hospital sites, and no-one 

would be expected to work at more than two hospitals. There would also be 

opportunities for any member of staff interested in working at more than one site in 

order to develop their expertise and career, such as gaining experience with a 

particular specialist team.   

10. Some time ago I read about a 
scheme called Patient Transfer 
Safety Intervention (I think).  
This scheme was to allow 
ambulance crews to hand over 
their patients and get back on 
the road quickly.  This scheme 
obviously did not happen 
because the queues of 
ambulances outside A&E’s 
meaning 999 call outs took 
many hours.  Why was this plan 
not implemented 

 The PSIT was in operation over the winter months with, as you have pointed out, the 
aim of handing over patients to clinical teams within the hospital to enable the 
ambulance service to get crews back on the road. 
  
At times, the demand for our services was such that this plan was not always 
effective.  We continue to work in close partnership with the ambulance service to 
ensure we support our patients to receive the best possible care and we are able to 
respond during peaks in demand.  
 
 

33
P

age 41



Page 8 of 68 
 

11. Transport – no information on 
this seems to be agreed or 
worked out yet.  When will this 
be sorted?  Who will staff it?  
Where will those staff come 
from?  It doesn’t seem very 
decided 

A detailed clinical specification for inter-hospital transfers depends on what is 
agreed (by the clinical commissioning groups) for future hospital services, 
following the consultation. This will lead to further clinical work to develop the 
protocols for safe patient transfers.  
 
In anticipation of commissioning decisions for hospital services, we are working 
with East of England Ambulance Service.  The London Ambulance Service and 
with colleagues from the major trauma networks. This builds on past and 
current experience in practice - where we already safely transfer patients across 
the county and into London to access the best available specialist care, when 
needed.  
 
In relation to family transport, we will be working with patient groups and 
colleagues from local authorities to develop our plans over the coming months. 
 

12. How do staff feel about 
moving?  Have they been 
asked?  Are they happy to 
travel?  Are you concerned if 
they will stay? 

The only staff we will expect to travel between sites would be consultant staff in 
the areas we are consulting on; they may be expected to work across more than 
one site in order to undertake their work (e.g. orthopaedic surgeons 
undertaking emergency operations at one site and planned operations at 
another).  We would not expect staff to have to work across more than two 
hospitals. 
 
In the case of non-consultant staff there may not be an expectation for them to 
work across sites, but if we expected a staff to travel to work across sites, this 
would be subject to a consultation process. Where a member of staff expresses 
an interest in working across more than one site to develop their expertise and 

34
P

age 42



Page 9 of 68 
 

career in a particular service area, for instance in a specific specialism which we 
will be able to newly provide as a result of creating these specialist centres, 
then we will obviously aim to make this happen. 
 

13. Consultation – how have you 
reached out to different ethnic 
communities to make them 
aware of the consultation?  The 
room doesn’t see to be filled 
with the vibrant mixture of 
communities that Southend is. 

We have promoted the consultation through the networks of the five clinical 
commissioning groups, the patient representative network associated with all 
health and care organisations and partners in the voluntary sector. These 
networks include a wide range of advocates and representatives of minority 
groups. Activities include email notifications, information in newsletters and on 
websites, as well as social media communications by all health and care 
organisations and partners. 
 
Southend Association of Voluntary Services (SAVS), for example, has highlighted 
the consultation several times in its weekly email to members, including groups 
such as the Hindu Elderly Day Centre, Essex Asian Women’s Association, 
Hungarian Community of Southend, Polish Saturday School, Masowe eChisanu 
and Faith Realities (which works with homeless people),  
 
Southend CCG, for example, has sent information to various groups 
representing vulnerable people, such as local members of Age UK, Alzheimer’s 
Society, MENCAP, Essex Dementia Care, Havens Hospices, Headway Essex, Take 
Heart, Southend Blind Welfare Organisation and Action for Family Carers. 
 
We have also held a number of focus groups for people with protected 
characteristics. For example, we have held sessions with new and “hard to 
reach” mothers, with members of the LGBT community, with learning disability 

35
P

age 43



Page 10 of 68 
 

groups and with young people.   
 
Full details on all consultation activities will be published in the outcome report 
in May. 
 

14. What will you do if you have an 
older patient who has multiple 
issues?  Like a stroke, fractured 
hip or gastrointestinal issues.  
These will be specialised at 
different sites? 

We often treat patients with multiple conditions and in such a case, the multi-
disciplinary team treating the patient, and in discussion with the patient and 
carer, will take decisions on where and how the patient should receive care to 
enable best clinical outcome and chances of recovery.   
 
Our clinical teams will be working as one across the three sites.  This means 
that, where, for example, a patient’s condition means that they cannot be 
transferred to the hospital with the specialist team for a particular condition, 
the specialist team will provide advice and support to the local team to support 
excellent clinical care; in addition, the specialist may travel to the patient where 
this was required.  

 

36
P

age 44



Page 11 of 68 
 

15. 23 Jan @lisacarol of Guardian 
reported:Senior doctors from 
overseas (outside EU) who have 
been appointed to fill key roles in 
hospitals around the UK are being 
blocked from taking up their jobs by 
the Home Office because NHS 
salaries are too low under 
immigration rules (£55000).  18 staff 
turned down in last 2 months 
including 16 doctors in senior 
medical posts in trauma from 
Caribbean and India as recruitment 
from Greece and Spain have “dried 
up”.  Should we lobby the 
Government to require the Home 
Office to abolish these absurd rules 
and allow qualified specialists to 
work in the NHS (who have passed 
GMC tests and language tests 
already)?  We cannot be reliant on 
EU pool which is unsustainable.  Are 
these another example of UK civil 
servants absurd bureaucracy 
blaming Brexit for the staff shortage 
– when it clearly isn’t. 

There are complexities with recruiting clinical staff from overseas, however 
we have significant experience of this in the hospitals where we have run 
successful nurse recruitment campaigns over recent years from Spain, the 
Philippines, etc.  
 
We also have a defined EU recruitment scheme in place, which will enable 
us to recruit 50 GPs over the coming 2 years.  Through this scheme we work 
closely with the GMC and Health Education England to overcome some of 
the challenges associated with recruiting from overseas. 
 
Anglia Ruskin University is planning, subject to final approvals, to open a 
School of Medicine in 2018 at its Chelmsford Campus.  Having such a facility 
locally will assist with our workforce challenges over coming years as many 
students who study at the School will take up local placements and, once 
qualified, many may wish to stay in the area 
 
 
 

37
P

age 45



Page 12 of 68 
 

16. Please can you explain how transport 
is costed between hospitals?  How 
does a patient travel back when 
discharged and will their family carers 
have transport too?  How will staff 
manage the additional hours of care 
that would have been provided by 
unpaid carers (family & friends) who 
will not be able to make the journey 
for health or reasons of other 
commitments such as childcare? 

Under the proposals, the vast majority of services remain at each hospital 
– this includes outpatient appointments, tests and scans and day case 
surgery.  Therefore, the average number of patients per day that may be 
required to travel to a different hospital site for inpatient (planned) care is 
14.    Clearly, we want to minimise the impact on these patients and their 
carers.  There is already in operation a patient transport service for 
patients who qualify, and financial support for patients required to travel, 
if they are on low income or receiving certain benefits.  This will continue.   
 
In relation to the proposed family transport service, we are working with 
patient groups and colleagues from local authorities to develop our plans 
over the coming months.  
 
We must await CCG decision making before finalising our transport plans, 
but we are working on details and will present information to the CCG 
Joint Committee to support their decision making process.  This will 
include costings.   
 

17. How many people have asked 
questions?  Why are you not prepared 
to answer individual questions?  Why 
are you so undemocratic to ignore the 
will of the people who did not 
(require/want) a break? 

We received over 100 questions at the Southend event. By asking for 
questions in writing, we are able to respond to many more questions than 
there was time available at the event itself. 
 
On the evening, a break in proceedings was taken to enable those in the 
audience the opportunity to formulate their comments and questions 
following the presentation on the proposals.  

 

38
P

age 46



Page 13 of 68 
 

18.  Could not see the slide for the stroke 
presentation.  It was not included in 
any handouts.  Please email a copy 

This is now available on the consultation website on the Events page at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/have-your-say/events/ (can you 
check link) 
 

19. We are being told care will be in the 
community, there is a shortage of 
district nurses, in Rochford, Rayleigh 
and Castle Point the 0-19 years is 
under the care of Virgin Care, there is 
a dire shortage of Health Visitors, they 
are leaving and not being replaced as 
Virgin Care do not train health visitors. 

The five clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) are working with GP 
practices, community, mental health providers and social care to bring 
together and develop care in each of their localities. This will enable a 
greater range of services to be provided closer to home, and will support 
local GP practices with their workload. 
 
The 0-19 pathway is not the subject of this consultation.  We will pass 
your comments on regarding this service.   
 

  

39
P

age 47

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/have-your-say/events/


Page 14 of 68 
 

20. Can the committee provide details and 
evidence of which local clinicians are 
backing the plans for reconfiguration 
relating to the renal medicine 
respiratory and transfer of patients 

A list of local clinicians who have led the development of our current 
proposals (along with clinical teams across the three sites) is as follows.  In 
addition there has been close involvement of the Medical Director (Dr 
Ronan Fenton), and Chief Medical Officer (Dr Celia Skinner) for the three 
hospitals, as well as the three site medical directors (Mr Neil Rothnie, 
Southend, Dr Tayeb Haider, Basildon and Dr Ellie Meakins, Mid-Essex, Dr 
Donald McGeachy, medical director for the CCG Joint Committee, local 
GPs and community colleagues. 
 

Pathway Clinical Lead 

Orthopaedics Greg Packer 

Sean Symons 

Renal Medicine Gowrie Balasubramaniam 

Stroke Care Paul Guyler 

Ramanathan Kirthivasan 

Cardiology Stuart Harris 

Gynaecology Mandeep Singh 

General Surgery Emma Gray 

Bryony Lovett 

Urology Peter Acher 

Martin Nuttall 

Emergency Pathway Edward Lamuren 

Hagen Gerofke (AMU) 

Vascular Vijay Gadhvi 

Respiratory Steve Jenkins, Marcus Pittman Duncan Powrie 

Gastroenterology Ronan Fenton  
 

40
P

age 48



Page 15 of 68 
 

21. You keep saying many proposed 
changes will affect only small numbers 
of patients – how are the changes cost 
effective? 

The main objective of the proposed changes is to improve specialist care 
and patient outcomes. This is not a cost-saving exercise.  By our teams 
working together across the three sites, we believe we will improve the 
quality of care we can provide for our patients. This is because working in 
larger teams improves experience and skill in some specialist services. A 
larger team offers more flexible working options, training, education, 
career development and improved uptake of new ideas to improve 
patient care.   
 

22. Why can’t more stroke specialist 
doctors who can remove clots be 
trained?  Pay them!  How does the UK 
compare with the rest of the civilised 
world in numbers of such specialists??  
MORE FUNDING NEEDED.  

Mechanical thrombectomy is a treatment for stroke that removes blood 
clots that block large blood vessels. Some patients may benefit from this 
procedure using radiological support and a device that grabs hold of the 
clots and removes them, to re-establish blood flow to the brain. Only 
Interventional Neuroradiologists are currently able to provide this service 
in neuroscience centres (24 in England, our nearest is Queens Hospital, 
Romford), although we do have a doctor trained locally here, providing a 
"best endeavours" system in Southend (i.e. it depends on the individual 
doctor happening to be available, so is only available on certain days and 
if certain individuals are available).   Interventional Neuroradiologist 
staffing levels vary between centres and currently only one centre in 
England is staffed to provide 24/7 cover for mechanical thrombectomy. 
  
In April 2017 NHS England announced that the NHS intends rolling out 
emergency mechanical thrombectomy to hospitals across the country, so 
there is support to invest in more of these doctors. In Essex we will 
support training and expansion of these skills, as stated at recent public 

41
P

age 49



Page 16 of 68 
 

events. However it is acknowledged by NHS England and the Royal College 
of Radiologists that generally there are not enough Neuroradiologists who 
are trained in the procedure to offer it universally, and indeed the 
numbers of Neuroradiologists available are below what we would need 
for the NHS in general - this is a key shortage profession. Training 
programmes for thrombectomy are in place, but it will take time to 
release clinical staff and allow them exposure to sufficient cases in a 
learning environment to develop and accredit their skills.  
 

23. Consolidation of specialist teams will 
result in duplication of job roles and 
subsequent job losses if experiences in 
pathology are indicative – please 
confirm this won’t happen 

Please be assured that we are not anticipating any redundancies in clinical 
posts associated with the proposed changes.  
 
We do need to look at running costs for our services and we continue to 
do so. Alongside the clinical changes we are proposing, we are also 
working hard to reduce inefficiencies in the system.  The three hospitals 
currently operate separate support services and non-patient facing 
functions, and there are opportunities from working together to reduce 
duplication and associated costs in these areas.  We are still in the early 
stages of redesigning corporate services so we are not in the position to 
comment on whether there will be any job losses. 

42
P

age 50



Page 17 of 68 
 

24. Mentioned at the start that there is a 
GP shortage (all know) and that 
specialised nurses would be trained to 
support/cover shortfall in GPs but 
nurses are: 

a. Leaving service because of 
stress or going P.T or retiring 

b. Leaving country re: Brexit 
c. Not training re: no student 

bursarys 
Where will nurses come from? 

We agree that workforce is a challenge.  There is no simple solution to the 
workforce supply gap, but working together in mid and south Essex across 
our hospitals and wider community to develop the skills and roles we 
need, and adopting innovative approaches will help address this.  
 
Individual CCGs and NHS England have plans in place to enhance the 
current primary care workforce through continued recruitment and 
retention schemes and through enhancing the education and training of 
health and care practitioners to support GPs. Clinical commissioning 
groups have already started the development of primary care services, 
which will increase the resilience of general practice and enable patients 
to access a wider range of health and care services closer to home. You 
can find out more about the specific plans by contacting your local clinical 
commissioning group (CCG). Some examples may be found in the “Further 
Information” section of our website at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-
information/  

25. Investing in our hospitals.  £118 
million.  Yes but where and how are 
we getting them we are already 
running short? 

The funds are identified for the STP and once any decisions are made we 
will submit business cases for the individual investment schemes to make 
use of the capital and redesign services. 
 
It is important to note that this capital will enable service changes and 
address some of the infrastructure and challenges faced by the hospitals, 
but it will not address all staffing and infrastructure requirements within 
the trusts, and our usual cycles and processes of prioritising investment 
will continue. Across the STP we are working together to identify how we 

43
P

age 51

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/


Page 18 of 68 
 

can achieve efficiencies, reduce waste and improve the value of our 
services. 
 

26. I am concerned that the senate council 
have no local knowledge only one is 
based on any of the 3 sites.  Why are 
the decision makers not local and have 
no local knowledge? 

The Clinical Senate is an independent function and there are purposefully 
no local clinicians involved as it is designed to be independent and free 
from any potential conflict of interest.  The Senate is made up of 
experienced clinicians from across a range of specialties. 
 
The decision-makers are the five clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) of 
mid and south Essex, which have in-depth knowledge of the local area 
and health and care needs of the population. 
 

27. What complex medical cases where 
there are several specialists care 
teams required? 

We often treat patients with multiple conditions in our hospitals, bringing 
together input from a range of different professionals. With increasingly 
complex numbers of conditions this is becoming more common. In such 
cases there is a discussion across the multidisciplinary team involving all 
the specialties which require input into the patients care. This team will 
then make a decision on where and how the patient should best receive 
care. These decisions will always be in partnership with patients and 
carers to enable access to the right advice and treatment at the right 
time, to achieve the best clinical outcome and chances of recovery.   
  
Our clinical teams will be working as one across the three sites.  This 
means that, where, for example, a patient’s condition means that they 
cannot be transferred to the hospital which hosts the specialist team for a 
particular condition, the specialist team will provide advice and support to 

44
P

age 52



Page 19 of 68 
 

the local team to support excellent clinical care either remotely, if 
possible, or by the specialist travelling to the patient if needed. 
 

28. How much investment is required 
overall for the changes proposed, but 
also to upgrade the degraded 
infrastructure and make good staffing 
deficits? 

We have made a bid for £118m of capital funding part of which will be 
used to upgrade our infrastructure. 
 
It is important to note that this capital will enable service changes and 
address some of the infrastructure and challenges faced by the hospitals, 
but it will not address all staffing and infrastructure requirements within 
the trusts, and our usual cycles and processes of prioritising investment 
will continue. Across the STP we are working together to identify how we 
can achieve efficiencies, reduce waste and improve the value of our 
services. 
 
We must await the outcome of CCG decision making so that we can 
finalise infrastructure plans to implement proposals that are supported 
 
A summary of the financial plan for the next five years is available in the 
consultation documents, and explained in a summary sheet on finance, 
which is downloadable from our website at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/resources/  
   

29. Where is that deficit funding to come 
from? 

The NHS in mid and south Essex will receive an increase in annual funding 
of around £280 million over the next five years.  
 
This is an increase in recurring funds, which means an increase in the 

45
P

age 53

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/resources/


Page 20 of 68 
 

income we receive every year. We are also informed by NHS England that 
we can expect an additional £78 million in funding for transformation. 
These additional sums would be added to the £1.95 billion that we 
currently spend on health services. 
 
While these are significant funding increases, they alone would not cover 
the estimated increase in demands on the local NHS over the next five 
years, which could arise from the growing population and increasing 
complexity of health and care needs. We therefore need to plan different 
ways of meeting these needs and avoiding the potential overspend 
estimated at £532 million, if we took no action at all. 
 
All NHS organisations are able to make efficiencies every year, by taking 
advantage of new technology and different ways of running services. 
Making these annual efficiencies is "business as usual" for the NHS, rather 
than as a result of major service changes. Over the next five years, this 
would avoid around £372 million of potential, which is most of the 
potential overspend.  
 
Further ways in which we could avoid an overspend over the next five 
years would come, not from cuts in services, but from organisations 
working together to save on bureaucracy and management costs; and 
from developments in care and support for people at home and in the 
community that avoid serious illness and people having to go into 
hospital. Our plan for the next five years aims to avoid around £126 
million of increased costs. 

46
P

age 54



Page 21 of 68 
 

30. The presentation and consultation 
documents give the impression that 
most A&E is the main point of 
admission to inpatient care.  Is that 
so?  How does those admission 
compare with planned admissions? 

Across our three hospitals, around 960 patients on average attend our 
A&E departments per day. Of these, around 300 patients per day on 
average are admitted to a hospital bed as an emergency.   
 
We perform thousands of treatments and procedures per day across our 
hospitals, many of these as day cases (which will, under the proposals, 
continue to occur on each hospital site).  Around 380 patients per day are 
admitted to our hospitals for planned care.  
 

31. You have made no reference to 
mental health provision.  Can you 
please explain what is happening and 
money earmarked. 

Mental health care is not the subject of the public consultation.  
 
The CCGs, and the CCG Joint Committee, are committed to improving the 
mental health care of our population, and will focus on the delivery of the 
Essex mental health strategy. A copy of the Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2017 – 2021 is available at 
https://www.livingwellessex.org/news/lets-talk-about-mental-health/  
 

32. I have been informed that these 
changes are based on research can we 
please have a full copy of this research 
including methods and methodology 

The clinical evidence used to support the proposed changes can be found 
on our website at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/ 
or you can request a printed copy from us by calling 01245 398 118.  
 

33. Can I be assured that these proposals 
will not mean further privatisation of 
the NHS. 

It is government policy that the NHS remains free at the point of delivery 
for all.   
 
Some services are already delivered by private providers, but under 

47
P

age 55

https://www.livingwellessex.org/news/lets-talk-about-mental-health/
http://at/
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/


Page 22 of 68 
 

standard NHS contracts and specifications. This adds to the capacity and 
range of NHS services (e.g. using the private sector to deliver some 
operations when the NHS does not have the capacity).   
 
The NHS abides by current procurement law in relation to the tendering 
of NHS services.  
 

34. What is the evidence for separating 
planned and emergency care? 

Further detail on evidence considered in the preparation of proposals can 
be found here: 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/.  
 
The Keogh report from NHS England identifies that best practice is to 
segregate elective surgery from emergency care entirely through the use 
of dedicated beds, theatres and staff. This greatly reduces cancellations 
and improves outcomes and patients’ journey through their treatment. 
The Royal College of Surgeons has reported that separating elective and 
non-elective work can reduce patient disruption and cancellations, and 
reduce rates of hospital-acquired infection. 
 
Separating planned from emergency care, particularly in specialties where 
lots of treatments occur, can help in reducing the number of operations 
that are cancelled due to emergency pressures.  Having a dedicated team, 
theatres and resources for planned care should help to improve our 
waiting times for elective treatment and enable patients to receive faster 
care.  
 

48
P

age 56

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/


Page 23 of 68 
 

35. What continuity of care problems 
might arise as a result of patients 
being partially cared for in one place 
then moved to another? 

We often treat patients with multiple conditions and in such a case, the 
multi-disciplinary team treating the patient, and in discussion with the 
patient and carer, will take decisions on where and how the patient 
should receive care to enable best clinical outcome and chances of 
recovery.   
 
Our clinical teams will be working as one across the three sites.  This 
means that, where, for example, a patient’s condition means that they 
cannot be transferred to the hospital with the specialist team for a 
particular condition, the specialist team will provide advice and support to 
the local team to support excellent clinical care; in addition, the specialist 
may travel to the patient where this was required.  
 

36. Dr Guylers’ presentation was good – 
indicated all based on increased 
funding, 5 year plan.  What is the 
likelihood of this model being funded 
and when? 

Thank you for your supportive comments regarding the proposals on 
stroke care.  Commissioners will make commissioning decisions on future 
arrangements when they have had the opportunity to review the 
consultation feedback and other key documents to support decision 
making.   
 

37. Throughout the consultation there is a 
huge reliance on pre hospital care and 
prevention of attendances.  As 
Southend has the second highest 
vacancy rate for GPs in the UK at 
present and the second highest 
number of GPs due to retire within the 

Over the next five years, the whole system in mid and south Essex is 
working to a plan that transforms the way patients receive health and 
care services. Our focus is very much on supporting population 
health.  This starts from before birth, supporting people (children and 
adults) to live healthy lives, and arming people with the tools to look after 
their health.  We are also working to enhance the care patients receive 
locally, supporting GPs, community, mental health and social care services 

49
P

age 57



Page 24 of 68 
 

next 5 years – why is there such 
reliance on primary care to prevent 
hospital admission?  What will happen 
when these results are not delivered? 

to work more closely together. Over time we expect this to reduce 
demand on hospital services so that we can continue to meet demand 
within expected population growth.     
 
We recognise that we face significant challenges in primary care – 
individual CCGs and NHS England have plans in place to enhance the 
current workforce through continued recruitment and retention schemes 
and through enhancing the education and training of other health and 
care practitioners to support primary care. Clinical Commissioning Groups 
have already begun the development of primary care services in defined 
localities, which will support the resilience of general practice and enable 
patients to access a wider range of health and care services closer to 
home. Individual CCGs have plans for locality development, and these will 
be available from the relevant CCG.  
 

50
P

age 58



Page 25 of 68 
 

38. Re: Your Care in the Best Place – 
developments over next 5 years.  In 
light of the current nursing crisis 
(40000 unfilled vacancies).  How do 
you propose to recruit and train 
‘advanced practitioners’ in primary 
care.  One in three nurses currently on 
the register are set to retire within the 
next 5 years AND the number of 
nurses entering training has declined 
drastically since the removal of the 
student nurse bursary.  In real terms 
their pay has DECREASED by 14% since 
2010.  I don’t believe that this 
proposal is sustainable due to the 
above.  Also nurses with children and 
other family commitments will NOT 
want to travel away from their current 
site. 

We absolutely recognise that workforce is a challenge.  There is no simple 
solution, but we are working together in mid and south Essex across our 
hospitals and wider community to think about the skills and roles we 
need, and adopting innovative approaches will help address this.    
  
Our current hospital proposals would see concentration of expert skills in 
many cases, helping to reduce the strain on key specialist roles. We have 
already seen in mid and south Essex that working together as one team 
across the three hospitals has helped recruit staff, as it offers less 
intensive working patterns and a broader range of work and opportunity 
that we can offer to skilled clinicians.   
 
Flexible working is important to many staff - working together across sites 
and in larger teams also offers more opportunity to support flexible 
working patterns, as well as innovative working arrangements such as 
rotational posts.   Staff will not be required to move if they do not wish to.  

39. You have done an excellent 
presentation but you will be aware of 
the sceptism in the audience.  What 
we would like to know is it possible to 
make £400 million worth of cuts and 
still maintain, let alone improve 
services? 

The predicted deficit figure relates to the financial state we would 
experience if we were to continue with commissioning and providing 
services in the way that we do currently.  We recognise that we can make 
significant efficiencies in the way we deliver services now, and in future.  
We are not proposing to make cuts to services, we are proposing working 
in different ways to prevent ill health from developing, support patients 
to manage their conditions in a more structured way and improve the 

51
P

age 59



Page 26 of 68 
 

services we provide.  Our summary sheet on finances provides further 
details (http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2018/01/Finance-summary.pdf) add in phone number 
too 
 

40. Will Southend Hospital staff receive 
pay in line with Basildon Hospital 

Although Southend has local terms and conditions, they do mirror the 
national NHS terms and conditions under the Agenda for Change 
framework. Basildon has the fringe allowance which may result in higher 
overall compensation at present due to zoning of payments for the 
London fringe allowance which are set nationally. Pay frameworks are 
linked to particular aspects of each role, and there are clear processes we 
need to follow on pay and conditions.  
 

41. Are outsourcing companies e.g. Capita 
Carillion involved – any plans to use 
such companies. 

The hospital trusts do not have any outsourced contracts with Carillion. 
We currently use a variety of third party suppliers for corporate and other 
services in facilities, for example for catering and cleaning on our sites.  
 
The trusts will review insourcing/outsourcing options as part of our 
normal value for money processes, this is not related to the current 
proposals. There are no specific plans to outsource other services 
although this remains an option where this provides a good quality/value 
for money solution. 
 
The NHS abides by current procurement law in relation to the tendering 
of NHS services. 

42. How can you guarantee that all the Some £28m of the £118m capital investment we have been earmarked to 

52
P

age 60

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/Finance-summary.pdf
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/Finance-summary.pdf


Page 27 of 68 
 

services will be able to work together?  
Not like when it was tried before but 
the wrong computers were purchased 
that were not compatible therefore a 
loss of money 

receive will be used to ensure technology is upgraded – this will ensure 
differing systems across the three hospitals are able to communicate with 
each other and medical records can be accessed at all sites.   

43. Your plans for managing hospital 
attendances are key to achieving your 
targets.  Southend has the second 
highest vacancy rate for GPs in the 
UKand many GPs are due to retire.  
How can we be sure that you will 
address the number of GPs and where 
is your concrete plan for delivery of GP 
services by other staff?  Is it not ‘pie in 
the sky’ to talk about nurses and 
pharmacists taking on other roles? 

Over the next five years, the whole system in mid and south Essex is 
working to a plan that transforms the way patients receive health and 
care services. Our focus is very much on supporting population 
health.  This starts from before birth, supporting people (children and 
adults) to live healthy lives, and arming people with the tools to look after 
their health.  We are also working to enhance the care patients receive 
locally, supporting GPs, community, mental health and social care services 
to work more closely together. Over time we expect this to reduce 
demand on hospital services so that we can continue to meet demand 
within expected population growth.     
 

We recognise that we face significant challenges in primary care – 
individual CCGs and NHS England have plans in place to enhance the 
current workforce through continued recruitment and retention schemes 
and through enhancing the education and training of other health and 
care practitioners to support primary care. Clinical Commissioning Groups 
have already begun the development of primary care services in defined 
localities, which will support the resilience of general practice and enable 
patients to access a wider range of health and care services closer to 
home. Individual CCGs have plans for locality development, and these will 
be available from the relevant CCG 

53
P

age 61



Page 28 of 68 
 

 

44. I have recently been to a private 
medically health service for treatment 
under NHS.  How do these costs 
fit/go/change in the new planned 
structures.  I worry about cost/benefit 
re light of constraints 
 

Where NHS treatment is provided by alternative providers, 
commissioners will pay private sector providers the same tariff (rate) as 
that paid to the NHS.  

45. There is a strong emphasis on cost 
cutting strategies with terms such as 
“reduction and restriction of low value 
services “ (9:5.2 full STP) 

a. What services procedures will 
this include? 

b. Who decides what is of low 
value? 

c. Will this mean older people will 
be prevented from some 
treatments? 
 

All CCGs currently have service restriction policies in place. These policies 
set out the clinical criteria for a large range of medical treatments and 
procedures and are designed to help ensure they are only carried out 
where there is clinical evidence that they are effective, beneficial to 
patients, and also affordable within available funding. CCGs will, in the 
usual course of their work, review these policies on a regular basis and 
where appropriate consult on any changes. Please be assured that 
treatments are not restricted on the basis of a patient’s age. 

 

46. There is reference to treatment at 
integrated neighbourhood hubs –  

a. Where will these be located? 
b. How will these be funded? 
c. How will these be staffed? 
d. What will they be treating? 

CCGs are working with GPs, community and mental health providers and 
local authorities on developing their local plans for service delivery.  Plans 
are available from the relevant CCG.  

54
P

age 62



Page 29 of 68 
 

47. Chapter 10 focuses on clinical 
assurance behind the decisions being 
taken.  Given that EAHSN independent 
report cites the limited availability of 
research and published literature 
relating to the exact proposed model 
how can reliance be put on decisions 
taken based upon it. 

We will make use of the available published literature and national 
guidance, combined with local clinicians’ knowledge of their services and 
information from our own processes and systems, to bring together our 
best plans. There is not always a large volume of definitive evidence from 
other areas, but detailed reviews by the external independent clinical 
experts of the East of England Clinical Senate will assist in examining and 
challenging the evidence.  
  
Where we have felt it necessary to seek out further evidence, we have 
commissioned specific research, such as for the proposed model for 
stroke (the independent report from UCL Partners on national and 
international clinical evidence on stroke care can be found on our website 
here: http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-
evidence/) 
  
Our local commissioners, in supporting this consultation have taken 
advice from the East of England Clinical Senate. The Senate has reviewed 
clinical proposals and their supporting evidence base on three occasions 
in 2016 and 2017, and has provided assurance to CCGs. During April 2018, 
proposals will again have a detailed review by the senate, and all feedback 
will be included when any decisions are taken in the Summer. 
  
The role of Clinical Senate is to be a source of independent, strategic 
clinical advice and guidance to health commissioners and other 
stakeholders to help them make the best decisions about healthcare for 
the populations they represent. We can also make sure that plans are 

55
P

age 63

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/


Page 30 of 68 
 

robust by putting measures and monitoring processes in place to check 
that they are implemented properly, and, as we work within them, that 
they are working well and if there are further improvements as plans 
progress. 
 
Previous reports from the Clinical Senate may be found on our website at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-
information/ 
 

48. Given that the published literature 
review has been given a 60% 
weighting is based on articles that are 
almost 30 years old and a higher 
proportion from countries outside the 
UK with different health care systems, 
how can the public have confidence 
that decisions based upon this clinical 
evidence are in the best interests of 
patients? 

See response to question 47, above 
 

49. The finance section refers to 
‘redundancies in the acute sector’ 

a. Will these be voluntary or 
compulsory? 

b. How many jobs are at risk? 

Please be assured that we are not anticipating any redundancies in clinical 
posts associated with the proposed changes.  
 
We do need to look at running costs for our services and we continue to 
do so. Alongside the clinical changes we are proposing, we are also 
working hard to reduce inefficiencies in the system.  The three hospitals 
currently operate separate support services and non-patient facing 

56
P

age 64

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/


Page 31 of 68 
 

functions, and there are opportunities from working together to reduce 
duplication and associated costs in these areas.  We are still in the early 
stages of redesigning corporate services so we are not in the position to 
comment on whether there will be any job losses. 
 

50. I am concerned that there is a lack of 
specific knowledge within the clinical 
senate with none of the members 
being based as the 3 main sites.  The 
only link to the local area is a member 
of one of the CCGs with over 20 
members coming from the wider 
geographical area.  A high proportion 
come from more rural less densely 
populated areas, meaning that they 
are unlikely to experience the high 
volumes of traffic and congestion that 
is common between the 3 sites.  Why 
are the decision makers not locally 
based? 
 

The Clinical Senate is an independent function and there are purposefully 
no local clinicians involved as it is designed to be independent and free 
from any potential conflict of interest.  The Senate is made up of 
experienced clinicians from across a range of specialties. 

 
Once the Clinical Senate has completed its second stage review (after the 
consultation process has ended), the proposals will go through a further 
review by our Clinical Cabinet (a panel of local senior doctors, nurses and 
health care professionals from across all organisations in mid and south 
Essex, who will collectively look at the proposals and provide feedback).   
 
The decision-makers are the five clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) of 
mid and south Essex, which have in-depth knowledge of the local area 
and health and care needs of the population. 
 

51. What local clinicians are backing these 
plans? 
 

A list of local clinicians who have led the development of our current 
proposals (along with clinical teams across the three sites) is as follows.  In 
addition there has been close involvement of the Medical Director (Dr 
Ronan Fenton), and Chief Medical Officer (Dr Celia Skinner) for the three 
hospitals, as well as the three site medical directors (Mr Neil Rothnie, 

57
P

age 65



Page 32 of 68 
 

Southend, Dr Tayeb Haider, Basildon and Dr Ellie Meakins, Mid-Essex,Dr 
Donald McGeachy, medical director for the CCG Joint Committee, local 
GPs and community colleagues. 
 

Pathway Clinical Lead 

Orthopaedics Greg Packer 

Sean Symons 

Renal Medicine Gowrie Balasubramaniam 

Stroke Care Paul Guyler 

Ramanathan Kirthivasan 

Cardiology Stuart Harris 

Gynaecology Mandeep Singh 

General Surgery Emma Gray 

Bryony Lovett 

Urology Peter Acher 

Martin Nuttall 

Emergency 

Pathway 

Edward Lamuren 

Hagen Gerofke (AMU) 

Vascular Vijay Gadhvi 

Respiratory Steve Jenkins, Marcus Pittman Duncan 

Powrie 

Gastroenterology Ronan Fenton  

 
 

52. Why don’t Government increase the We will include your view in our report on feedback. 

58
P

age 66



Page 33 of 68 
 

NHS insurance to cover the additional 
cost? 
 

 

53. Does the free bus service apply to 
staff? 
 

Staff could make full use of the proposed family transport service.  Our 
plans will be fully worked through for this service and presented to the 
CCG Joint Committee to aid decision-making.  
 

54. How many jobs will be lost with the 
merger plan? 
 

The proposed trust merger is an entirely separate process to the public 
consultation and is not related to any of the proposed service changes.      
 
We do need to look at running costs for our services and we continue to 
do so. Alongside the clinical changes we are proposing, we are also 
working hard to reduce inefficiencies in the system.  The three hospitals 
currently operate separate support services and non-patient facing 
functions, and there are opportunities from working together to reduce 
duplication and associated costs in these areas.  We are still in the early 
stages of redesigning corporate services so we are not in the position to 
comment on whether there will be any job losses. 
 

55. For cardiology cases, if an operation is 
diagnosed at the local hospital, how 
quickly will the patient be transported 
to Basildon and be operated on? 
 

It is already the case that patients requiring urgent cardiothoracic 
procedures are transferred between hospitals to be treated at the 
specialist centre at Basildon Hospital.  The speed of transfer would be 
dependent on the patient’s clinical need.  

 

59
P

age 67



Page 34 of 68 
 

 

56. How are you going to recruit more 
nurses and doctors and how will you 
afford to pay for them?  Does the 
current bursary scheme for nurses 
training, work in helping to recruit or 
does it deter would be nurses from 
training because of the debt. 
 

We will continue to proactively recruit locally, national and overseas, we 
intend to refresh our marketing approach, offer schemes to retain our 
nurses and doctors and enhancing our recruitment processes. 
 
We currently spend significant sums of money on hiring locums and 
agency staff to cover rota gaps- therefore an increased substantive 
workforce will be affordable within current levels of funding. 
 
It is too early to say whether the removal of nurse bursaries will impact 
on the future nursing workforce. The Trusts are working closely with 
local university providers and in the last intake (September 2017) all 
three Trusts doubled their numbers of newly qualified nurses compared 
to previous years. We will be developing a range of strategies across 
group to increase our recruitment within this area. The opportunity of 
the group means that we can create a wealth of job opportunities, skills 
development, training and education and the ability to learn from 
clinical experts. We will build on these opportunities to create an 
attractive offer to our staff. 
 

57. Have you done an environmental 
impact assessment on the significant 
increase in transportation across 
Essex? 

 

An environmental impact assessment will be included in the detailed 
transport plan which will be submitted to the CCG Joint Committee to 
support its decision-making.    

60
P

age 68



Page 35 of 68 
 

 

58. Talking of £118m CAPITAL what is the 
projected cost cut (revenue) as a part 
of this STP?  And how are cuts 
contributing to the required £2.2bn 
NHS savings? 

 

There is not specifically a cost reduction as a result of the capital spend 
as the rationale for the investment is to ensure that facilities are of the 
highest quality needed to support patient services. There are however 
anticipated revenue savings as a result of the wider acute 
reconfiguration which could generate up to £20.8m savings per annum 
once fully implemented (likely to be from 2021/22). These are as a result 
of efficiencies in four areas –  

 Productivity gains through reduced patient length of stays and 
pre-procedure stays,  

 economies of scale in the delivery of services,  

 reductions in the utilisation of agency staffing  

 through increased capacity which means some of the activity 
currently undertaken outside of our area (notably in London) can 
now be delivered within the three local hospitals. 

 
A summary of the financial plan for the next five years is available in the 
consultation documents, and explained in a summary sheet on finance, 
which is downloadable from our website at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/resources/  
 

59. Care in the community should be in 
place before services are cut in acute 
care.  Will they be and what is the 
funding for this? 

Firstly, we do not have plans to cut services in acute care. The proposals 
we are consulting on relate to: 

- Maintaining and enhancing A&E services at each site 
- Consolidating some specialist services which need a hospital stay 

61
P

age 69

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/resources/


Page 36 of 68 
 

 on one site 
- Developing a specialist stroke unit on the Basildon Hospital site 
- Separating some planned operations from emergency care 
- Moving some hospital services closer to home (Eg. in Orsett 

where we are proposing to more services from Orsett Hospital to 
centres in the community) 

 

CCGs are responsible for planning and arranging care outside of hospital 
and they are already working on plans to develop localities and further 
improve community services.   
 

The CCG Joint Committee will reach a decision on the proposals, 
considering the feedback to the consultation and further detail on 
proposed implementation plans.  
 

60. If your proposals depend on 
preventing people coming to A&E and 
in getting people out of hospital and 
into the community, how will this ever 
work given that councils face a funding 
crisis and that residential and domestic 
care companies face tighter contracts?  
There is not enough social care 
provision now!  What will you do if the 
right social care provision continues to 
be unavailable? 

Over the next five years, the whole system in mid and south Essex is 
working to a plan that transforms the way patients receive health and 
care services. Our focus is very much on supporting population 
health.  This starts from before birth, supporting people (children and 
adults) to live healthy lives, and arming people with the tools to look 
after their health.  We are also working to enhance the care patients 
receive locally, supporting GPs, community, mental health and social 
care services to work more closely together. Over time we expect this to 
reduce demand on hospital services so that we can continue to meet 
demand within expected population growth.    This joint working 
approach will also have the benefit of supporting discharge from 
hospital.  

62
P

age 70



Page 37 of 68 
 

 

61. As the £118 million is only ‘ear 
marked’ at present and not in the bank 
for our 3 hospitals; 
1. Has the criteria for accessing the 

£118 million been set? 
2. What is it? 
3. Does the 1st slide on page 6 of our 

handout meet it? 
4. If any of our list doesn’t meet the 

criteria where’s the funding coming 
from? 

We had to go through a bidding process and the additional facilities we 
need are all costed.  The plans went to the Treasury.  
 
Following the consultation process, and decision-making, we have to 
submit business cases in stages to release the capital money. The criteria 
for that are based on an assessment of whether the changes will deliver 
the benefits to patients that we have described within the pre-
consultation business case that supports all of these changes. We need 
to articulate we are spending the money on the things that deliver the 
best outcomes for patients. 
 
In the next stage of the process for accessing funds we would need to go 
into more detail on potential patient benefits. We are not bidding 
against anyone, the funding has been identified and we were named in 
the Autumn Budget as £118m identified for mid and south Essex.  
 

62. Does the amount for each hospital 
including funding the transport 
transfers for patients and free 
transport for visitors?  Which would 
take priority equipment (e.g. MRI 
machines) or transport? 
 
 

Funding for clinical and family transport is identified within the pre-
consultation business case developed as the basis of proposals. 
Associated infrastructure requirements within the £118m includes 
necessary equipment, e.g. for theatres, critical care beds and where 
needed to increase diagnostics capacity. 
 

63
P

age 71



Page 38 of 68 
 

63. Where will the funding for specialist 
staff be coming from? 

We currently spend significant sums of money on hiring locums and 
agency staff to cover rota gaps- therefore an increased substantive 
(permanent) workforce will be affordable within current levels of 
funding. 
 

64. Will the transport have blue flashing 
lights to indicate emergency vehicles?  
As at present most/some thoughtful 
move out of the way for the 
emergency services on already 
congested roads. 

The precise design of the inter-hospital transfer service is still being 
developed and the type of vehicles, etc. will depend on patient need. Of 
course it is important to transport patients quickly and when necessary, 
emergency priority access will of course be used. All vehicles will be 
equipped to national ambulance standard and so capable of travelling 
under blue light should the need arise.  
 
A detailed clinical specification for inter-hospital transfers depends on 
what is agreed (by the clinical commissioning groups) for future hospital 
services, following the consultation. This will lead to further clinical work 
to develop the protocols for safe patient transfers.  
 
In anticipation of commissioning decisions for hospital services, we are 
working with East of England Ambulance Service. The London 
Ambulance Service and with colleagues from the major trauma 
networks. This builds on past and current experience in practice - where 
we already safely transfer patients across the county and into London to 
access the best available specialist care, when needed.  
 
 

 

64
P

age 72



Page 39 of 68 
 

65. Will staff be expected to travel across 
the three sites 

The only staff we will expect to travel between sites would be consultant 
staff in the areas we are consulting on; they may be expected to work across 
more than one site in order to undertake their work (e.g. orthopaedic 
surgeons undertaking emergency operations at one site and planned 
operations at another).  We would not expect consultant staff to have to 
work across more than two hospitals. 
 
In the case of non-consultant staff there may not be an expectation for them 
to work across sites, but if we expected a staff to travel to work across sites, 
this would be subject to a consultation process. Where a member of staff 
expresses an interest in working across more than one site to develop their 
expertise and career in a particular service area, for instance in a specific 
specialism which we will be able to newly provide as a result of creating 
these specialist centres, then we will obviously aim to make this happen. 
 

66. If creating centre of excellence for 
stroke at all hospitals – why not other 
areas of health? 

There are clear clinical standards and expectations placed upon acute trusts 
to provide specialist stroke care to maximise benefits for patients, 
specifically for the first 72 hours post-stroke.  We are proposing to develop a 
specialist stroke unit at Basildon Hospital for this purpose. Evidence and 
published guidance is that this unit is best placed at Basildon, co-located 
with specialist vascular and interventional radiology services. 
 
The current proposals lay out plans to create several centres of excellence 
across our system for patient benefit – in addition to, and in some cases, 
enhancing those we already have at Basildon for Cardiothoracic Care, 
Southend for Cancer and Broomfield Hospital for Plastic Surgery, Ear, Nose 

65
P

age 73



Page 40 of 68 
 

and Throat and upper gastrointestinal surgery and Burns. Proposals describe 
consolidation of specialist vascular and medical conditions (such as renal 
medicine) to Basildon, Gynaecological surgery to Southend and General 
Surgery and Benign Urology to Broomfield, for example. 
 

67. Free transport is not going to meeting 
the needs of carers – carers/family 
increase patient improvement time 
take “hours” to get there with road 
traffic. 

We recognise that there may be impact upon family members and carers if 
patients need to spend time in a more distant hospital.  This is why we are 
proposing a free family transport service.  We will develop the service with 
input from patients and carers so that we can take full account of their 
concerns and design a service that meets their needs as far as possible.  
 

68. How can savings mean more specialist 
teams? 

We currently spend significant sums of money on hiring locums and agency 
staff to cover rota gaps attempting to maintain specialist services on several 
sites - therefore an increased substantive workforce will be affordable 
within current levels of funding. 
 

69. What will be the cost of losing staff 
that are trained and integrated cost of 
redundancy as suitable alternatives 
not available? 

Please be assured that we are not anticipating any redundancies in clinical 
posts associated with the proposed changes.  
 
We do need to look at running costs for our services and we continue to do 
so. Alongside the clinical changes we are proposing, we are also working 
hard to reduce inefficiencies in the system.  The three hospitals currently 
operate separate support services and non-patient facing functions, and 
there are opportunities from working together to reduce duplication and 
associated costs in these areas.  We are still in the early stages of 
redesigning corporate services so we are not in the position to comment on 

66
P

age 74



Page 41 of 68 
 

whether there will be any job losses. 
 

70. How many jobs/trained NHS workers 
will leave due to these changes i.e. 
move to a different hospital, lack of 
opportunities in their own hospital as 
services removed 

We expect that from working in larger teams across sites, staff will 
experience greater opportunities for career development, training and 
education, innovative working patterns, flexible working, etc.  We are 
working hard to continually discuss the proposed changes with our staff and 
many have already starting to work in different ways.  While we cannot 
categorically say how individual staff members will react, we do think our 
plans offer the best chance of recruiting and, most importantly, retaining 
the dedicated and well-trained staff that we have.   
 

71. When will you know how many jobs 
for workers will change? 

A small number of jobs may change as a result of the proposals, primarily in 
specialist service areas.  Such changes are being discussed with staff as part 
of service design and preparing these proposals.  If the decision is taken by 
commissioners to proceed, implementation of changes will be carried out in 
consultation with any staff members affected and with the appropriate 
union representatives.   

72. Pathology services for Southend were 
outsourced to a private company.  And 
I hear many staff resigned due to 
unacceptable working conditions 
recently they’ve been in media 
following a cervical smear, catastrophe 
endangering the lives of many people.  
Money has been taken out of the NHS 
and now profiting a private company.  

The pathology service has been set up as a joint venture between Basildon 
and Southend NHS Trusts and a private company to deliver an essential 
service across the locality pooling expertise from the public and private 
sector.   
 
You may have read in the media that a re-examination is currently taking 
place of a number of cervical screening tests. This is because an issue was 
identified in the cervical screening lab service provided by Pathology First 
following a routine Public Health England Screening Quality Assurance visit 

67
P

age 75



Page 42 of 68 
 

How can you assure us that what has 
happened in pathology won’t happen 
to the rest of the services? 

in June 2017. 
 
An investigation was immediately launched and it was agreed that 2,500 
samples should be reviewed from the period April 2016 to September 2017, 
from women that were aged between 24 and 29, for whom it was their first 
smear test, and a small number of women in their 60s for whom it was their 
last smear test. 
 
It is government policy that the NHS remains free at the point of delivery for 
all. 
 
Some services are already delivered by private providers, but under 
standard NHS contracts and specifications. This adds to the capacity and 
range of NHS services (e.g. using the private sector to deliver some 
operations when the NHS does not have the capacity).   
 
The NHS abides by current procurement law in relation to the tendering of 
NHS services.  
 

73. How are family’s going to get from 
Shoeburyness to Chelmsford or 
Basildon at 3am without transport.  If 
the patient is the only one who can 
drive.  How much will this cost 365 
days a year? 

We recognise that there may be impact upon family members and carers if 
patients need to spend time in a more distant hospital.  This is why we are 
proposing a free family transport service.  We will develop the service with 
input from patients and carers so that we can take full account of their 
concerns and design a service that meets their needs as far as possible. 
 
A detailed plan on transport arrangements, with costings, will be presented 

68
P

age 76



Page 43 of 68 
 

to the CCG Joint Committee to aid their decision-making.  
 

74. You are proposing transferring the 
sickest patients – as stated by Dr 
Fenton in The Echo, totalling 25 
patients per day.  These will need a 
specialist tam including a highly skilled 
doctor or nurse escort.  As staff 
shortages are documented as part of 
the reason you say service relocation 
and centralisation are required, how 
can you even consider this as part of 
the solution?  Where are you getting 
these staff from to man a 24/7 internal 
transfer service?  And who will train 
them? 

It is not the intention to transfer the sickest patients, rather to treat and 
stabilise immediate issues at the presenting hospital and then to transfer for 
ongoing complex care.  The average number of patients who may need to 
transfer to a different hospital for urgent care is 15 per day– this is an 
average and as such will differ on a daily basis.  We are currently running a 
number of real-time audits of patients presenting to our three A&E 
departments who may be transferred should the proposals be accepted and 
implemented in order to help validate these modelling assumptions.  
Currently this audit is confirming that the average number of patients 
requiring transfer per day is in line with our original calculations (i.e. an 
average of 15 per day).  
 
Our plans for a clinical transfer service include a dedicated fleet of vehicles, 
and trained clinical staff to escort patients on their journey.  The number 
and skillset of the staff accompanying the patient will depend on the 
patient’s need.  We are working closely with the ambulance service and with 
colleagues from major trauma centres across the region on clinical protocols 
and transfer standards and working to define appropriate training 
programmes for staff.  
 

75. If a patient is transferred to 
Broomfield – for major surgery – how 
are they going to get home?  From 
your figures 1200 people will be using 

As with any patient requiring inpatient care, their discharge will be carefully 
planned with the patient and their family.  This will enable us to assess the 
patient’s needs on discharge, including transport.  Many patients are taken 
home from hospital by family or friends, some are taken by our dedicated 

69
P

age 77



Page 44 of 68 
 

transport a week – what if they live in 
Great Wakering – where will they get 
transport from? 

patient transport service. 

76. Have you formally surveyed the staff 
at the three sites to gauge how willing 
they would be to travel?  There are 
multiple opportunities for many staff 
to leave the trusts and work in the 
community or travel to London.  How 
has this been quantified and risk 
assessed? 

The only staff we will expect to travel between sites would be consultant 
staff in the areas we are consulting on; they may be expected to work across 
more than one site in order to undertake their work (e.g. orthopaedic 
surgeons undertaking emergency operations at one site and planned 
operations at another).  We would not expect consultant staff to have to 
work across more than two hospitals. 
 
In the case of non-consultant staff there may not be an expectation for them 
to work across sites, but if we expected a staff to travel to work across sites, 
this would be subject to a consultation process. Where a member of staff 
expresses an interest in working across more than one site to develop their 
expertise and career in a particular service area, for instance in a specific 
specialism which we will be able to newly provide as a result of creating 
these specialist centres, then we will obviously aim to make this happen 
 

77. Where funding for transfers 29 per day 
across 3 centres = 10,324 journeys a 
year!!  Where money how number of 
vehicles 

Funding for the clinical transport and family transport service has been 
allowed for in the pre-consultation business case.  
 
We are working on detailed transport plans, including costings, that will be 
presented to the CCG Joint Committee to aide their decision-making.  
 

78. How does the proposals allow recruit 
and retention of staff where are they 

Our plans for teams to work together across the three hospitals offer 
improved opportunities for staff in terms of care development, training and 

70
P

age 78



Page 45 of 68 
 

now? Budget? education, flexible working, etc. We know from other areas that offer such 
opportunities it does help with recruitment and retention.   
 

We currently spend significant sums of money on hiring locums and agency 
staff to cover rota gaps- therefore an increased substantive (permanent) 
workforce will be affordable within current levels of funding. 
 

79. Dr Guyler ignored the content of 
‘stroke slide’ i.e. Basildon as Centre? 

Proposals are for Basildon Hospital to be the site of the Specialist Stroke 
Centre where patients from across the three hospitals would receive hyper-
acute care which has been shown to improve outcomes, as detailed in the 
consultation document. 
 

80. £118m is it in the budget of the 
merged Trust’s or each individual 
Trust? 

The £118m relates to the bid for capital funding to support the proposed 
changes across the three hospitals.   
 

It is not the revenue budget for the three hospitals.  The proposed merger of 
the three trusts is separate to the public consultation. 
 

81. Why has the choose and book system 
been changed.  Doctors referral letters 
now go to triage where non clinical 
people decide 

The NHS e-Referral Service (e-RS) is a service that offers electronic and 
telephone booking. Patients can choose their initial hospital or clinic 
appointment, book it in the GP surgery at the point of referral, or later 
at home on the phone or online 
 

Triage processes are in place in some areas. This is to ensure that the 
referral contains adequate information, is directed to the appropriate place, 
and is for a treatment that is currently supported by the CCGs service 
restriction policy. All referrals are triaged by clinical staff. 

71
P

age 79



Page 46 of 68 
 

82. Question for Dr Skinner – Is there 
going to be a stroke ambulance 
equipped with a CT scanner operating 
in Southend?  Does Dr Guyler think 
this is a good thing? 

A stroke ambulance is not included in these proposals. In other countries, 
cities such as Berlin have ambulances with a CT scanner in them to diagnose 
stroke earlier. In Southend for a while, local clinicians have been looking at 
this model and have good links with Germany. There is consideration of a 
trial of this ambulance for the region, and we are hopeful we may be able to 
do so. What we do not know is whether this would work in a more 
distributed geographical region than in a city.  We would like to try it out. If 
this does seem feasible, it could be in addition to the hospital service 
changes proposed at the moment, but until we know the model would be 
better, we would not be able to invest in the development. 
 

83. What will you do if a patient refuses to 
be transferred?  What will you do if a 
doctor refuses to transfer a patient as 
it is not in their best interests?  What 
happens when a patient is so unwell it 
is unsafe to transfer them yet 
specialist required to treat them are 
no longer at the Southend Hospital 
site? 

If a patient with capacity refuses to transfer to a location which is thought to 
be best for their care their wishes will be adhered to and every effort will be 
made to optimise care where they wish to remain, including specialists 
travelling to the patient if required or directing optimal care from the 
specialist centre.  
 
If a clinician or the clinical team consider patient transfer not to be in the 
patient’s best interest then the patient will not transfer and every effort will 
be made to optimise patient care including specialists travelling to the 
patient or directing care from the specialist unit.    
 

84. What data is your analysis based upon 
regarding travel times and traffic 
studies.  Where is the evidence for 
your assertions? 

The transport modelling done during the development of proposals forms 
part of the pre-consultation business case for these changes and can be 
found here: http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-
information/ 

72
P

age 80

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/


Page 47 of 68 
 

85. Where will they treat an elderly 
patient who has had a stroke, 
fractured their hip and has 
gastrointestinal issues – as these will 
be at three different sites 

We often treat patients with multiple conditions and in such a case, the 
multi-disciplinary team treating the patient, and in discussion with the 
patient and carer, will take decisions on where and how the patient should 
receive care to enable best clinical outcome and chances of recovery.   
 
Our clinical teams will be working as one across the three sites.  This means 
that, where, for example, a patient’s condition means that they cannot be 
transferred to the hospital with the specialist team for a particular 
condition, the specialist team will provide advice and support to the local 
team to support excellent clinical care; in addition, the specialist may travel 
to the patient where this was required.  
 

86. What is planned for patients not 
ticking the box for ambulance 
transport yet cannot get on a bus? 

In these proposals if a patient was being transferred between hospital sites 
for urgent treatment, this would be via clinical transport. 
 

87. Regarding respiratory transfers will the 
Royal Brompton or Addenbrookes not 
now be appropriate 

Pathways to tertiary referral services such as those at Brompton and 
Addenbrookes remain unchanged in these proposals.  
 

88. We are aware that at your STP 
meetings, staffing modelling showed 
that EVEN MORE staff would be 
required to run a hub and spoke 
model for all services which were 
analysed, yet you are still claiming that 
this is a solution to staffing issues. 

The intention is not to reduce staffing numbers across the acute hospitals. 
Currently there are issues with attracting staff to funded posts and these 
either remain unfilled or occupied by locum health care workers. The 
proposed models of care allow improved professional opportunities for staff 
and will improve our ability to attract and retain staff to this area. The 
models proposed provide both better job satisfaction and more sustainable 
on call rotas for staff who currently are working to   challenging out of hours 
shift patterns.  

73
P

age 81



Page 48 of 68 
 

89. How can running a whole new 
transport service for relatives and 
patients save money?  Where are the 
projected costs for running this service 
and how will this money be saved 
from elsewhere?  Are the already 
under-resourced East of England 
Ambulance Service going to be 
expected to assist with the transfers? 

The proposed family transport service does not save money, it is proposed 
to relieve the concerns that patients have raised regarding how they and 
their relatives and friends might be able to visit a more distant hospital.  
There are various ways that this service could be delivered and we are 
exploring these.  A detailed plan, with costings, will be provided to the CCG 
Joint Committee to aide their decision-making. 
 
With regard to clinical transport, we recognise the pressures that the East of 
England Ambulance Service Trust are under at present.   We are drawing up 
detailed plans for the clinical transport model.   We may run this service “in 
house”, or may procure a service.  East of England may wish to bid for this 
work.  As per usual procurement rules, we would need to ensure the 
provider was able to deliver the service to the required standards.   
 

90. Your modelling emphasises the 
separation of emergency and planned 
care for these changes to be 
successful.  You state only a ‘minimal’ 
number of people will be transferred 
between sites yet this actually totals 
775 patients per month – not very 
minimal in our opinion – so how are 
these two statements not mutually 
exclusive? 

In the context of the c 3300 patients per day that attend an outpatient 
appointment and the c380 people a day that visit our hospitals for a planned 
operation, the average of 14 patients per day who may be referred to a 
more distant hospital for treatment is small.  We absolutely recognise 
however, that the impact on families could be significant.  This is why we are 
proposing a free family transport service.  We will develop the service with 
input from patients and carers so that we can take full account of their 
concerns and design a service that meets their needs as far as possible. 
 
A detailed plan on transport arrangements, with costings, will be presented 
to the CCG Joint Committee to aid their decision-making.  
 

74
P

age 82



Page 49 of 68 
 

Patients will continue to be able to exercise choice at the point of referral 
and if they do not wish to be treated within mid and south Essex, they can 
choose to be treated at any other hospital that provides the service they 
need.  This should be discussed with the GP at the point of referral.  
 

91. A few months ago the trusts said there 
would be no merger now there is a 
proposal to do that.  Why should we 
believe our A&E and stroke units will 
not eventually go? 

The three rust boards have supported progressing with a merger of the 
three hospitals.  This is entirely separate to the proposed service changes 
which are the subject of the current consultation and decided upon by the 
five CCGs.  
 
Regardless of whether the trusts merge, any further service change would 
be subject to a full public consultation.  All NHS organisations have a duty to 
consult on significant service change.   
 

92. If someone who would now have a 
clot removed in Southend but has to in 
future go to Basildon, what danger 
would that present to the patient? 

The ability to provide a thrombectomy (clot removal) service seven days a 
week would be a vast improvement on the current provision - which is on a 
"best endeavours" system in Southend (i.e. it depends on individual doctors 
happening to be available, so is only available on certain days and if certain 
individuals are available). The difference in travel time from Southend to 
Basildon following initial stabilisation at Southend would not outweigh the 
advantage of having increased access to this service. Currently when the 
service is not available patients have to travel to Queens Romford or 
Addenbrookes Hospital. 
 

 

75
P

age 83



Page 50 of 68 
 

93. How will they take the publics’ opinion 
on board?  If people don’t want this, 
can and how can it affect the plans? 

We are running this consultation to gather the views of the public living in 
mid and south Essex.  The consultation includes a range of public events, 
focus groups, patient group meetings and the use of social media.  We 
encourage people to complete our on-line survey to give us their views, or 
write to us; all feedback will be independently analysed at the close of 
consultation and this report will be considered by the CCG Joint Committee 
when it takes decisions on the proposed changes. In making the decision 
the Joint Committee will take into account a range of information and 
evidence when looking at the future of services in mid and south Essex. It is 
not a referendum, but it is important to express views and ideas as 
feedback from patients and the public, along with equality impact 
assessments, will form an important part of that process.   
 
Our aim is to provide the best service to our whole population, using the 
resources we have available.    
 

94. Why is there no-one from the 
ambulance service here?  Surely we 
should have some data and detail from 
them? 

The services provided by the ambulance service are not subject to this 
public consultation. However, we have, and continue to, work closely with 
colleagues in the ambulance service as we develop our proposals and they 
have been involved in our discussions. Senior colleagues from the 
ambulance trust form a part of our local Clinical Cabinet and are central to 
all our discussions. We will relay views from earlier events and will 
endeavour to have representatives from the ambulance service at future 
public events if possible. 

 

76
P

age 84



Page 51 of 68 
 

95. All of these improvements need to be 
planned, funded and embedded 
before any services are withdrawn.  
 
I’m completely opposed to any 
privatisation viz.  The scandal about 
55,000 smear tests that need to be re-
done due to the failure of a private 
provider (announced this week) 

The CCG Joint Committee will take decisions on whether the proposals will 
be implemented.  An important part of our assurance processes if we move 
to implementation will be to ensure the right conditions for service change. 
 
The pathology service has been set up as a joint venture between Basildon 
and Southend NHS Trusts and a private company to deliver an essential 
service across the locality pooling expertise from the public and private 
sector.   
 
You may have read in the media that a re-examination is currently taking 
place of a number of cervical screening tests. This is because an issue was 
identified in the cervical screening lab service provided by Pathology First 
following a routine Public Health England Screening Quality Assurance visit 
in June 2017. 
 
An investigation was immediately launched and it was agreed that 2,500 
samples should be reviewed from the period April 2016 to September 
2017, from women that were aged between 24 and 29, for whom it was 
their first smear test, and a small number of women in their 60s for whom 
it was their last smear test. 
 
It is government policy that the NHS remains free at the point of delivery 
for all.   
 
Some services are already delivered by private providers, but under 
standard NHS contracts and specifications. This adds to the capacity and 

77
P

age 85



Page 52 of 68 
 

range of NHS services (e.g. using the private sector to deliver some 
operations when the NHS does not have the capacity).   
 
The NHS abides by current procurement law in relation to the tendering of 
NHS services.  
 

96. Care agencies are stepping out of Local 
Authority (LA) contracts as they cannot 
deliver the services at the price.  This 
means vulnerable people are 
becoming more frail and desperate – 
how is the plan going to deal with this 
issue when (LA) funding has been 
cut?? 

We recognise that the care market is stretched at present and our local 
authority colleagues are working hard to reduce the impact of this.   
 
Over the next five years, the whole system in mid and south Essex is 
working to a plan that transforms the way patients receive health and care 
services. Our focus is very much on supporting population health.  This 
starts from before birth, supporting people (children and adults) to live 
healthy lives, and arming people with the tools to look after their 
health.  We are also working to enhance the care patients receive locally, 
supporting GPs, community, mental health and social care services to work 
more closely together. This will include proactive identification of patients 
requiring care planning and additional support.   
 
Over time we expect this to reduce demand on hospital services so that we 
can continue to meet demand within expected population growth.    This 
joint working approach will also have the benefit of supporting discharge 
from hospital.  
 

97. Shortage of GPs, midwives, psychiatric 
nurses, health visitors, social workers – 

We recognise that we face significant challenges in primary care – 
individual CCGs and NHS England have plans in place to enhance the 

78
P

age 86



Page 53 of 68 
 

how can primary services be improved 
when staff not available? 

current workforce through continued recruitment and retention schemes 
and through enhancing the education and training of other health and care 
practitioners to support primary care. Clinical Commissioning Groups have 
already begun the development of primary care services in defined 
localities, which will support the resilience of general practice and enable 
patients to access a wider range of health and care services closer to home. 
Individual CCGs have plans for locality development, and these will be 
available from the relevant CCG 
 

98. Isn’t prevention services an area that 
has already been cut?  Of little use to 
over 60s.  Social care needs major 
input of funds 

We are clear that we need to work harder on disease prevention and on 
helping people to self-care. We are working with local authority partners, 
GP practices, community and mental health services and the voluntary 
sector to achieve this.  That said, we absolutely recognise that we have a 
cohort of patients who have already developed ill health that need our 
support.  Our plans for local health and care and developing localities are 
aimed at ensuring GPs and primary care teams can focus their attention on 
the patients that need the most care and support.  
  

99. It is not clear from this form that the 
questions are focussed on primary 
care 

The improvements we are making in primary care are not the subject of 
this consultation but provide helpful context to the system wide changes 
we need to make.  

100. For Tom Abell – Please can you 
advise us if you think that Hyper Acute 
Stroke Units are a good thing?   

 
 

 
Yes.  
 
 
 

79
P

age 87



Page 54 of 68 
 

So if they provide such good outcomes 
for stroke patients, then why did you 
block the formation of a Hyper Acute 
Stroke Unit several years ago when 
you were part of the Basildon and 
Brentwood CCG?  Are you actually 
telling us that patients have been 
dying or suffering disability for all 
those years but now suddenly it is a 
good thing.  PLEASE EXPLAIN 

 

What we did not have previously, but we now have in mid and south Essex, 
is our clinicians working together. There was not, previously a consensus 
between our consultants that this was the right thing to do. Since then 
there have been many more conversations between the clinical bodies of 
the three hospitals to establish this as the consensus way forward. Dr. 
Guyler also expressed a desire to move forward, as we are now at a new 
level for stroke and if we work together we can have better stroke services, 
he felt this should have been done in 2011, but now we will move on and 
gain senior support to take forward discussion with commissioners about 
thrombectomy. 
 

101. For Paul Guyler: 
The stroke service is very important to 
the people of Southend therefore can 
we hear a detailed summary of the 
exact plans for stroke patients in 
Southend from Dr Guyler please? 
 
 
 
Follow up question… 
So Dr Guyler, these plans sound very 
positive and would appear to be in the 
clinical best interests of Southend 
patients.  Can you tell us if these plans 
are guaranteed to happen and if so, 

We want the best standard for stroke for the best outcomes, absolutely. 
That is why clinicians have worked together and we want the right patients 
to get to the specialist stroke unit at Basildon, to fund the right scans, and 
that funding is identified. For thrombectomy, to develop this service past 
that currently being delivered through the best endeavours of the 
specialist doctors, to more patients in Southend, Basildon, wherever, that 
has to be funded through the commissioners. This is not STP funding, it is 
the commissioning model. We will fight for that and we are in active 
conversations about that now with commissioners.  
 
There are lots of benefits to working together and Dr. Guyler stated a 
desire to get on with the new service improvements, and that it will take 
time to train, etc. for new treatments. As stated by Dr. Guyler, clinicians 
will not operate a model that is wrong for patients, and if there is anything 
that it turns out we cannot do and need to change the model in a 

80
P

age 88



Page 55 of 68 
 

when will they start? 
 
 
Follow up question… 
So Dr Skinner, can YOU guarantee here 
and now that the STP are willing to 
invest the necessary money needed 
for the stroke interventional service 
and further guarantee that there will 
be 24/7 MRI scanning at each hospital, 
a fully staffed acute assessment team 
24/7 at each hospital and a 
thrombectomy service covering the 
region?? 
 
When is this going to happen and is 
there a formal agreement for the 
investment for this to take place 
confirmed?  Also, is it true there will 
be a stroke ambulance equipped with 
a CT scanner operating in Southend? 
 
Dr Guyler, do you have anything to say 
about the stroke ambulance and also 
can we ask, if your vision for stroke 
services detailed here tonight does not 

significant way, he will not go ahead as we will not be providing the best 
care. 
 
 
We have been allocated capital by the Treasury which includes funding for 
stroke e.g. scanning capacity for MRI early in the pathway, changes needed 
to the building at Basildon for the intensive acute stroke care. After that, in 
terms of a thrombectomy service, the trusts are behind developing that 
and want it to happen, but this activity needs to be funded by NHS England 
Specialised Commissioners. This funding is not provided from the Trusts, it 
is income we would get for delivering that care. 
 
 
 
 
A stroke ambulance is not included in these proposals. In other countries, 
cities such as Berlin have ambulances with a CT scanner in them to 
diagnose stroke earlier. In Southend for a while, local clinicians have been 
looking at this model and have good links with Germany. There is 
consideration of a trial of this ambulance for the region, and we are 
hopeful we may be able to do so. What we don’t know is whether this 
would work in a more distributed geographical region than in a city, so 
what we would like to do is try it out. If this does seem feasible, it could be 
in addition to the hospital service changes proposed at the moment, but 
until we know the model would be better, we would not be able to invest 
in the development. 

81
P

age 89



Page 56 of 68 
 

materialise, where are we then with 
the stroke service? 
 

 

102. The consultation includes plans 
which we know DO NOT have clinician 
approval – for example the transfer of 
people on NIV (non-invasive 
ventilation), pneumonia and pleural 
disease.  Clinicians have specifically 
told us these patient will not be 
transferred.  Why are you even 
consulting on this and why are you 
stating they will have a better 
outcome when there is no clinical 
evidence to support this. 
 
 

There are acknowledged difficulties in transferring patients requiring NIV 
(Non Invasive Ventilation). This has been highlighted by a number of 
clinicians. In medicine there are frequently differences of opinion 
expressed between colleagues. Discussion continues with clinicians 
regarding whether there is an advantage to concentrating this patient 
group’s treatment on one site. Should it be concluded that there is an 
advantage then the issues around transport of this patient cohort will be 
addressed. This is a patient cohort which is successfully managed in this 
way in other parts of the country and we have been in discussion with 
these areas regarding the optimal transport management.  
 
Critically ill patients are transported daily between hospitals right now by 
highly experienced inter-hospital patient transfer teams. It is 
understandable and correct for clinicians who are not used to actually 
transporting critically ill patients to raise concern which is why we are 
including these colleagues together with experts in actual patient transport 
in the development of protocols. 
 

103. There has been no cross-site 
consultation or agreement for some of 
the changes which you are consulting 
on – for example – gastroenterology, 
orthopaedics and trauma therefore 

A list of local clinicians who have led the development of our current 
proposals (along with clinical teams across the three sites) is as follows.  In 
addition there has been close involvement of the Medical Director (Dr 
Ronan Fenton), and Chief Medical Officer (Dr Celia Skinner) for the three 
hospitals, as well as the three site medical directors (Mr Neil Rothnie, 

82
P

age 90



Page 57 of 68 
 

why are you going ahead with this 
when it has not been clinically led or 
agreed? 

Southend, Dr Tayeb Haider, Basildon and Dr Ellie Meakins, Mid-Essex,  Dr 
Donald McGeachy, medical director for the CCG Joint Committee, local GPs 
and community colleagues. 
 

Pathway Clinical Lead 

Orthopaedics Greg Packer 

Sean Symons 

Renal Medicine Gowrie Balasubramaniam 

Stroke Care Paul Guyler 

Ramanathan Kirthivasan 

Cardiology Stuart Harris 

Gynaecology Mandeep Singh 

General Surgery Emma Gray 

Bryony Lovett 

Urology Peter Acher 

Martin Nuttall 

Emergency 

Pathway 

Edward Lamuren 

Hagen Gerofke (AMU) 

Vascular Vijay Gadhvi 

Respiratory Steve Jenkins, Marcus Pittman Duncan 

Powrie 

Gastroenterology Ronan Fenton  

 
 
 

83
P

age 91



Page 58 of 68 
 

104. Is it true that Pat Oakley 
(independent advisor to the NHS) has 
suggested that the only way to 
manage orthopaedic demand is to 
build a new, independent orthopaedic 
unit outside of the 3 hospitals at the 
junction of the A13 and A130?  How 
do you foresee service provision at 
Southend if this is pursued? 

Dr. Pat Oakley has spoken to staff in the NHS locally as part of some 
workshops to help develop thinking about future strategies, technological 
advancement and workforce change; she aims to arouse ideas. As part of 
her approach she often presents challenging, unfamiliar or unusual 
proposals to stimulate debate – for these purposes, such points on 
occasion may be hypothetical rather than directly informed by specific local 
circumstances.  Any suggestions made by Dr Oakley in this context should 
not be considered as planning assumptions or proposals which will be 
pursued at this time. The specific example mentioned here is not 
something that is part of current proposals or this consultation. 
 

105. You are proposing transferring the 
sickest patients – as detailed by you in 
the Echo totalling 25 patients per day 
– these will need a specialist team 
including a highly skilled doctors or 
nurse escort to do so.  As staff 
shortages are documented as part of 
the reason you say service re-location 
and centralisation are required, how 
can you even consider this as part of 
the solution?  Where are you getting 
these staff from to man a 24/7 internal 
transfer service?  Who will train them? 

 
 

It is not the intention to transfer the sickest patients, rather to treat and 
stabilise immediate issues at the presenting hospital, and then to transfer 
for ongoing complex care.  The average number of patients who may need 
to transfer to a different hospital for urgent care is 15 per day– this is an 
average and as such will differ on a daily basis.  We are currently running a 
number of real-time audits of patients presenting to our three A&E 
departments who may be transferred should the proposals be accepted 
and implemented in order to help validate these modelling assumptions.  
Currently this audit is confirming that the average number of patients 
requiring transfer per day is in line with our original calculations (i.e. an 
average of 15 per day).  
 
Our plans for a clinical transfer service include a dedicated fleet of vehicles, 
and trained clinical staff to escort patients on their journey.  The number 
and skillset of the staff accompanying the patient will depend on the 

84
P

age 92



Page 59 of 68 
 

How can running a whole new 
transport service for relatives and 
patients save money?  Where are the 
projected costs for running this service 
and how will this money be saved 
from elsewhere?  Are the already 
under-resourced East of England 
Ambulance Service going to be 
expected to assist with the transfers? 
(Same as Q93) 

patient’s need.  We are working closely with the ambulance service and 
with colleagues from major trauma centres across the region on clinical 
protocols and transfer standards and working to define appropriate 
training programmes for staff.  
 
Who will accompany a patient when transferred will depend on their 
clinical condition, it is not always the most highly trained members of staff 
in the team that will be required.  At the moment we transfer patients 
between our sites with a commissioned transfer service. We have an inter-
hospital transfer group which is looking to consider patient needs and the 
skills required to support these additional transfers, should proposals go 
ahead.  
 
The proposed family transport service does not save money, it is proposed 
to relieve the concerns that patients have raised regarding how they and 
their relatives and friends might be able to visit a more distant hospital.  
There are various ways that this service could be delivered and we are 
exploring these.  A detailed plan, with costings, will be provided to the CCG 
Joint Committee to aide their decision-making. 
 
With regard to clinical transport, we recognise the pressures that the East 
of England Ambulance Service Trust are under at present.   We are drawing 
up detailed plans for the clinical transport model.   We may run this service 
“in house”, or may procure a service.  East of England may wish to bid for 
this work.  As per usual procurement rules, we would need to ensure the 
provider was able to deliver the service to the required standards.   

85
P

age 93



Page 60 of 68 
 

106. What will you do it a patient refuses 
to be transferred?  What will happen if 
a doctor refuses to transfer a patient 
as it is not in their best interest?  What 
happens when a patient is so unwell it 
is unsafe to transfer them yet the 
specialists required to treat them are 
no longer at the Southend hospital 
site? (Same as Q87) 

If a patient with capacity refuses to transfer to a location which is thought 
to be best for their care their wishes will be adhered to and every effort 
will be made to optimise care where they wish to remain, including 
specialists travelling to the patient if required or directing optimal care 
from the specialist centre.  
 
If a clinician or the clinical team consider patient transfer not to be in the 
patients best interest then the patient will not transfer and every effort will 
be made to optimise patient care including specialists travelling to the 
patient or directing care from the specialist unit.    
 

107. Where will they treat an elderly 
patient who has had a stroke, 
fractured their hip and has 
gastrointestinal issues – bearing in 
mind these specialties will be at three 
different sites if plans go ahead?  

We often treat patients with multiple conditions and in such a case, the 
multi-disciplinary team treating the patient, and in discussion with the 
patient and carer, will take decisions on where and how the patient should 
receive care to enable best clinical outcome and chances of recovery.   
 
Our clinical teams will be working as one across the three sites.  This means 
that, where, for example, a patient’s condition means that they cannot be 
transferred to the hospital with the specialist team for a particular 
condition, the specialist team will provide advice and support to the local 
team to support excellent clinical care; in addition, the specialist may travel 
to the patient where this was required 
 

108. Have you formally surveyed the staff 
at the three sites to gauge how willing 
they would be to travel?  There are 

The only staff we will expect to travel between sites would be consultant 
staff in the areas we are consulting on; they may be expected to work 
across more than one site in order to undertake their work (e.g. 

86
P

age 94



Page 61 of 68 
 

multiple opportunities for many staff 
to leave the trusts and work in the 
community or travel to London.  How 
has this been quantified and risk 
assessed?  (Another question is the 
same) 

orthopaedic surgeons undertaking emergency operations at one site and 
planned operations at another).  We would not expect staff to have to 
work across more than two hospitals. 
 
In the case of non-consultant staff there may not be an expectation for 
them to work across sites, but if we expected a staff to travel to work 
across sites, this would be subject to a consultation process. Where a 
member of staff expresses an interest in working across more than one site 
to develop their expertise and career in a particular service area, for 
instance in a specific specialism which we will be able to newly provide as a 
result of creating these specialist centres, then we will obviously aim to 
make this happen. 
 
We expect that from working in larger teams across sites, staff will 
experience greater opportunities for career development, training and 
education, innovative working patterns, flexible working, etc.  We are 
working hard to continually discuss the proposed changes with our staff 
and many have already starting to work in different ways.  While we 
cannot categorically say how individual staff members will react, we do 
think our plans offer the best chance of recruiting and, most importantly, 
retaining the dedicated and well-trained staff that we have.   
 
 

109. Throughout the consultation there is 
a huge reliance on pre hospital care 
and prevention of attendances.  As 

Over the next five years, the whole system in mid and south Essex is 
working to a plan that transforms the way patients receive health and care 
services. Our focus is very much on supporting population health.  This 

87
P

age 95



Page 62 of 68 
 

Southend has the second highest 
vacancy rate for GPs in the UK at 
present and the second highest 
number of GPs due to retire in the 
next 5 years – why is there such 
reliance  on primary care to prevent 
hospital admission?  What will happen 
when these results are not delivered? 
(same as another question) 

starts from before birth, supporting people (children and adults) to live 
healthy lives, and arming people with the tools to look after their 
health.  We are also working to enhance the care patients receive locally, 
supporting GPs, community, mental health and social care services to work 
more closely together. Over time we expect this to reduce demand on 
hospital services so that we can continue to meet demand within expected 
population growth.     
 
We recognise that we face significant challenges in primary care – 
individual CCGs and NHS England have plans in place to enhance the 
current workforce through continued recruitment and retention schemes 
and through enhancing the education and training of other health and care 
practitioners to support primary care. Clinical Commissioning Groups have 
already begun the development of primary care services in defined 
localities, which will support the resilience of general practice and enable 
patients to access a wider range of health and care services closer to home. 
Individual CCGs have plans for locality development, and these will be 
available from the relevant CCG.  
 

110. Your modelling emphasises the 
separation of emergency and planned 
care for these changes to be 
successful.  You state only a ‘minimal’ 
number of people will be transferred 
between sites yet this actually totals 
775 patients per month – not very 

In the context of the c 3300 patients per day that attend an outpatient 
appointment and the c380 people a day that visit our hospitals for a 
planned operation, the average of 14 patients per day who may be 
referred to a more distant hospital for treatment is small.  We absolutely 
recognise and want to mitigate the impact.    This is why we are proposing 
a free family transport service.  We will develop the service with input from 
patients and carers so that we can take full account of their concerns and 

88
P

age 96



Page 63 of 68 
 

minimal in our opinion – so how are 
these two statements not mutually 
exclusive? (Same as Q94) 

design a service that meets their needs as far as possible. 
 
A detailed plan on transport arrangements, with costings, will be presented 
to the CCG Joint Committee to aid their decision-making.  
 
Patients will continue to be able to exercise choice at the point of referral 
and if they do not wish to be treated within mid and south Essex, they can 
choose to be treated at any other hospital that provides the service they 
need.  This should be discussed with the GP at the point of referral.  
 

111. We are aware that at your STP 
meeting, staffing modelling showed 
that EVEN More staff would be 
required to run a hub and spoke 
model for all services which were 
analysed, yet you are still claiming that 
this is a solution to staffing issues. 
(Same as Q92) 

The intention is not to reduce staffing numbers across the Acute Hospitals. 
Currently there are issues with attracting staff to funded posts and these 
either remain unfilled or occupied by locum health care workers. The 
proposed models of care allow improved professional opportunities for 
staff and will improve our ability to attract and retain staff to this area. The 
models proposed provide both better job satisfaction and more sustainable 
on call rotas for staff who currently are operating in extremely onerous 
conditions. 
 

112. As most services are based around 
the numbers of patients being seen 
either in a clinic or procedure list how 
will moving these to different places 
save money?  The demand will still be 
the same and hence resources 
required the same? 

The proposals are not about saving money, they are about improving our 
offer to patients, improving the quality and safety of the care we provide.  
 
The way services are organised has a big impact on how much the cost to 
run and how well they can be reliably sustained – such as having a larger 
team covering a single rota rather than smaller teams covering several 
rotas. We can make changes to help reduce costs of staffing gaps, etc. in 

89
P

age 97



Page 64 of 68 
 

this way, and also help to make sure services run as planned and we do not 
waste resources or need to re-provide care because it has been disrupted – 
for example by aiming to separate out elective operating from emergency 
cases. We are aiming to avoid costs where possible in the future and will 
still be increasing the number of beds in the hospital by around 50 beds. 
 

113. Pathology services for Southend 
Hospital were outsourced to a private 
company.  This has led to a mass 
resignation of 10 of the pathology staff 
employed by the company due to 
unacceptable working conditions and 
poor service provision.  Most recently 
they’ve been in the national media 
following a cervical smear catastrophe 
endangering the lives of many women.  
Money is now being taken out of the 
NHS and is profiting a private company 
when it should have been invested in 
the hospital, benefitting the local 
community.  This is typical of the 
stealth privatisation of NHS services.  
We need this to be reversed, 
investment improved, work conditions 
in the hospital to improve so that 
staffing isn’t such a desperate issue.  

The pathology service has been set-up as a joint venture between Basildon 
and Southend NHS trusts and a private company to deliver an essential 
service across the locality, pooling expertise form the public and private 
sector. 
 
You may have read in the media that a re-examination is currently taking 
place of a number of cervical screening tests. This is because an issue was 
identified in the cervical screening lab service provided by Pathology First 
following a routine Public Health England Screening Quality Assurance visit 
in June 2017. 
 
An investigation was immediately launched and it was agreed that 2,500 
samples should be reviewed from the period April 2016 to September 
2017, from women that were aged between 24 and 29, for whom it was 
their first smear test and a small number of women in their 60s for whom it 
was their last smear test. 
 
It is government policy that the NHS remains free at the point of delivery 
for all.   
 

90
P

age 98



Page 65 of 68 
 

How can you assure us that what has 
happened to pathology won’t happen 
to the rest of services? 

Some services are already delivered by private providers, but under 
standard NHS contracts and specifications. This adds to the capacity and 
range of NHS services (e.g. using the private sector to deliver some 
operations when the NHS does not have the capacity).   
 
The NHS abides by current procurement law in relation to the tendering of 
NHS services.  
 

114. Given that the published literature 
review that has been given a 60% 
weighting in this instance is based on 
some articles that are almost 30 years 
old and that not all the published 
literature related to the UK, with a 
higher proportion of published 
literature used from countries abroad 
who do not have the same health care 
system as in the UK.  How as a 
member of the public reading this 
information can I have confidence that 
the decisions based on the clinical 
assurance will be to the benefit of and 
not to the detriment of the patients of 
Mid and South Essex?  

We will make use of the available published literature and national 
guidance, combined with local clinicians’ knowledge of their services and 
information from our own processes and systems, to bring together our 
best plans. There is not always a large volume of definitive evidence from 
other areas, but detailed reviews by the external independent clinical 
experts of the East of England Clinical Senate will assist in examining and 
challenging the evidence.  
  
Where we have felt it necessary to seek out further evidence, we have 
commissioned specific research, such as for the proposed model for stroke 
(the independent report from UCL Partners on national and international 
clinical evidence on stroke care can be found on our website here: 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/) 
  
Our local commissioners, in supporting this consultation have taken advice 
from the East of England Clinical Senate. The Senate has reviewed clinical 
proposals and their supporting evidence base on three occasions in 2016 
and 2017, and has provided assurance to CCGs. During April 2018, 

91
P

age 99

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/clinical-evidence/


Page 66 of 68 
 

proposals will again have a detailed review by the senate, and all feedback 
will be included when any decisions are taken in the Summer. 
  
The role of Clinical Senate is to be a source of independent, strategic 
clinical advice and guidance to health commissioners and other 
stakeholders to help them make the best decisions about healthcare for 
the populations they represent. We can also make sure that plans are 
robust by putting measures and monitoring processes in place to check 
that they are implemented properly, and, as we work within them, that 
they are working well and if there are further improvements as plans 
progress. 
 
Previous reports from the Clinical Senate may be found on our website at 
http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/ 
 

115. I am concerned that there is a 
specific local knowledge within the 
Senate Council with none of the 
members being based at the 3 main 
sites under consideration.  The only 
link to the local area is a member of 
one of the local CCGs with over 20 
other members coming from a wider 
geographical area.  A high proportion 
of the membership come from more 
rural less densely populated areas, 

The Clinical Senate is an independent function and there are purposefully 
no local clinicians involved as it is designed to be independent and free 
from any potential conflict of interest.  The Senate is made up of 
experienced clinicians from across a range of specialties. 

 
Once the Clinical Senate has completed its second stage review (after the 
consultation process has ended), the proposals will go through a further 
review by our Clinical Cabinet (a panel of local senior doctors, nurses and 
health care professionals from across all organisations in mid and south 
Essex, who will collectively look at the proposals and provide feedback).   

92
P

age 100

http://www.nhsmidandsouthessex.co.uk/background/further-information/


Page 67 of 68 
 

meaning that are unlikely to 
experience the high volumes of traffic 
and congestion that is common in the 
areas between the 3 sites.  Why are 
the decision makers not those with 
local experience and knowledge of the 
area?  

  

93
P

age 101



Page 68 of 68 
 

116. Senate membership encompasses a 
broad range of specialism for different 
fields – but is lacking clinicians from 
the sites in question and with direct 
links to the service under 
reconfiguration.  The public learnt that 
the previous plans were not backed by 
local clinicians, can the committee 
provide details and evidence of the 
which local clinicians are backing these 
plans for reconfiguration? 

A list of local clinicians who have led the development of our current 
proposals (along with clinical teams across the three sites) is as follows.  In 
addition there has been close involvement of the Medical Director (Dr 
Ronan Fenton), and Chief Medical Officer (Dr Celia Skinner) for the three 
hospitals, as well as the three site medical directors (Mr Neil Rothnie, 
Southend, Dr Tayeb Haider, Basildon and Dr Ellie Meakins, Mid-Essex,  Dr 
Donald McGeachy, medical director for the CCG Joint Committee, local GPs 
and community colleagues. 
 

Pathway Clinical Lead 

Orthopaedics Greg Packer 

Sean Symons 

Renal Medicine Gowrie Balasubramaniam 

Stroke Care Paul Guyler 

Ramanathan Kirthivasan 

Cardiology Stuart Harris 

Gynaecology Mandeep Singh 

General Surgery Emma Gray 

Bryony Lovett 

Urology Peter Acher 

Martin Nuttall 

Emergency Pathway Edward Lamuren 

Hagen Gerofke (AMU) 

Vascular Vijay Gadhvi 

Respiratory Steve Jenkins, Marcus Pittman Duncan Powrie 

Gastroenterology Ronan Fenton  
 

 

94
P

age 102


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 20 January 2018
	Minutes

	5 Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP)
	Agenda
	5 Mid and South Essex Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP)
	MSE STP telephone survey script w demographics FINAL SIGNED OFF
	Patient Transport Process Green Paper 08.03.18ONLINE
	Questions from Southend Public Discussion Event FINAL



